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contemporary architecture.
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2001 2000

Net Asset Value per share (p) 802 694

Profits before tax* (£ million) 169.1 156.4

Total returns* (%) 19.3 11.9

Assets under management (£ billion) 10.5 9.5

Gearing (debt/property and investments) (%) 46 49
*pre-exceptional

British Land’s opportunistic but risk averse strategy seeks to 
achieve long-term growth in shareholder value by:

focusing primarily on leading, quality assets in the office, retail and
development areas, which provide exceptional long-term investments,

creating a high quality, modern portfolio with growth potential, coupled 
with covenant quality and a long lease profile,

recycling capital and enhancing returns through acquiring assets which
offer the scope to add value through active management,

maximising equity returns through innovative financing and joint ventures.

The key to the maximisation of returns is flexibility, both in terms 
of the business organisation and financing to take advantage of 
shifts in the property market.
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British Land, which is registered in London and listed

on the London Stock Exchange, owns a portfolio of

prime properties valued at £8.9 billion.

Most of these properties are directly owned and

managed. The balance is held in innovative joint ventures

and partnerships, of which British Land’s share is valued

at £1.5 billion. The portfolio remains focused in sectors

where the fundamentals of supply and demand remain

sound. 44% of the portfolio is in Central London offices,

32% in Out of Town retail property. In addition, the

current development programme provides significant

investment opportunities in these areas. The UK

element represents 98% of the portfolio, reflecting the

Group’s strategy to leverage its local knowledge and

proven expertise in this market.

British Land’s principal revenue source is rental

income with current net annualised rents of £493 million,

including share of joint ventures. The Group has an

efficient capital structure with optimal leverage to

enhance returns on equity. The ratio of debt to assets 

is maintained at or around 50%, whilst preserving a

strong financial position at all times in terms of recurring

interest cover and available liquidity. British Land’s

financing is risk averse with a long debt maturity and

low average cost of debt. On average around 85% of

debt is hedged against movements in interest rates.

The Group employs 138 staff at its head office, of

whom 50 are executives focused on the integrated 

core disciplines of property investment, management,

development and financing. 

In this year’s annual report we look at the work 

of the Museum of London, an institution whose aims

and ideals we are proud to support. 

1 1 Museum archaeologist surveying one of British
Land’s London developments. Like the construction
crews alongside whom they work, the hard hats
and high-visibility jackets are badges of office.
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Chairman’s Statement

We are in the business of buying and developing properties

which will add to net asset value and thus total return.

We finance this expenditure cheaply and limit our exposure

to variable interest rates. We control debt to be roughly

the same amount as our shareholders’ funds, enabling

us to deliver double any increase in value which the

portfolio achieves, a particularly useful attribute in a time

of low inflation.

Our strategy has proved its worth. The rise in net

assets this year is 15.6% by 108p to 802p per share,

and is based on a portfolio rise of 6.7%.

Pre-tax profits were £169.1 million, a record. After 

the exceptional charge in respect of the repurchase of

the £300 million Unsecured 121/2% Bonds 2016 and 87/8%

Bonds 2023, pre-tax profits were £85.5 million. We timed

the repurchase of these Bonds to a point when we 

were able to negotiate favourable terms, which reduce

the tax charge and will provide interest savings of some 

£5 million per annum, pulling our weighted average 

cost of debt down to 6.6%. 

The pre-exceptional total return for the year was 19.3%.

The tax rate was 11.9%.

The Board is recommending a final dividend of 

7.9p per share, an increase of 5.3%.

Our Approach

Our policy remains to buy first class modern property 

in good locations, preferably with long leases to high

quality tenants.

A profitable development programme is important 

to the Group. These developments often derive from

investment purchases, Plantation Place, Regent’s Place

and East Kilbride being typical examples of replacing

older properties or adding to existing investments.

In recent years we have used Joint Venturing to

broaden our approach. Through joint ventures we secure

properties off market, spread risk and procure additional

financing with like-minded top quality partners. We earn

fees as we are able to manage ventures to satisfy both

our own and our partners’ standards. We now have 
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Ordinary dividend
pence per share

1 On workshop days, volunteer guides dress in period costume to
bring historic London to life. Lunch break gives them a chance 
to catch up with 21st century concerns.

2 Panel from a 15th century chest, depicting a scene from Chaucer’s
‘Pardoner’s Tale’.

3 Hat by Philip Treacy, 1993, made of stripped coq feathers.
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15 ventures with a total asset value of £3 billion, financed

to the extent of £1.6 billion with minimal recourse to British

Land or its partners. Joint ventured developments include 

201 Bishopsgate with Railtrack, Cherrywood in Ireland

with Dunloe Ewart and Dun Laoghaire Rathdown County

Council, and Blythe Valley Park with ProLogis in Solihull. 

In 2001 we have added new development ventures with

Gazeley Properties and Countryside Properties.

Our strategy is to anticipate financing needs. We

raise funding when and where it is available rather than

when it is required. Instantly accessible resources are

essential to an active investor, for example in choosing the

moment to redeem funding when it is advantageous –

as with the Unsecured Bonds.

Our investment is always opportunistic – it is the

nature of our business. Sellers are not waiting for us,

nor is there a conveyor-belt of good properties on a

predetermined basis. When, for instance, owners want 

to get out – provided that their properties qualify under

our criteria – we will be buyers, and if the market is a bit

queasy at the time, so much the better our bargaining

position. Our major City holding, Broadgate, which has

shown such good growth this year, was purchased initially
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Group Rental Income Net Asset Value
£m pence per share
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through corporate venturing in 1995/96. In late 1998 

and early 1999 we added to our holdings at a counter

cyclical point when the market was over-depressed by

overseas worries, and we were able to buy at a yield

over 1% higher than the interest rate we pay on the

£1.54 billion securitisation we completed in May 1999.

With Meadowhall too we grasped the moment to 

buy when it arose. It has shown its quality as rents there

have already risen from £45 million to over £60 million 

in the eighteen months we have owned it, and this

during a severe retail shakeout.

Opportunism is tempered by our aversion to risk,

exemplified by:

– long leases with good covenants

– a diversified, largely freehold and modern portfolio

– long finance and low exposure to variable interest rates

– wariness in starting on major developments speculatively.

You are halfway to making money if you avoid losing any.  

Scale – an advantage for British Land shareholders 

Size brings many advantages. By owning a big portfolio

British Land enjoys an annualised rent roll of £493 million,

enabling it to carry development sites until it is opportune

1 Pewter miniatures from the 14th century. 

2 Roman dagger and sheath, of the kind used by legionaries.

3 The Museum functions as the capital’s collective memory. The social
history of London in the mid-20th century was recorded in a recent
exhibition of photographs from its archives. 

4 Reaching across the generations… Popular entertainment is a theme 
pursued throughout the Museum. One day the T-shirt and CD disc
player might be prized exhibits.

43
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to start, with no significant impact on profits. The Company’s

size makes it one of the limited number of contenders for

mega investments and developments. Size also means that

it can attract and engage with major corporations, such

as Tesco, GUS and Scottish & Newcastle, in joint ventures

which have proved extremely fruitful for British Land. Its

mix of investment, primarily in offices and retail, spreads

risk as these sectors tend to perform disparately.

Operationally, with £10.5 billion of assets under

management, there are economies of scale in administrative

costs. Professional fees are proportionally lower on large

transactions. A wide range of deals is offered to British

Land because of its size and activity, keeping it in daily

touch with the property market. Over the last five years

purchases amount to £2.5 billion and sales to £1.8 billion.

We do not hang on to non-performing assets.

Access to funding sources is much wider and cheaper

for a large property company, and our £2.1 billion

unsecured bank book is all available on one standard

borrowing document. Our purchasers know we can pay,

our tenants know their landlord has substance to care for

the properties and alter them to meet new needs.

And shareholders know that a significant market

capitalisation makes for a wider universe of investors

and greater liquidity in the stock market.  

Another advantage of size is access to the best

corporate advice, and we review and re-review all the

possibilities as a matter of course. For example, given our

covenants and lease terms, we can operate with a highly

leveraged balance sheet in order to optimise equity

returns from portfolio growth. As such share buy-backs

are not generally on our agenda. However, if at any time

gearing were to become sub-optimal and we could

foresee no value creating investment opportunities, then

of course we would consider share buy-backs. That is

why we have shareholder approval in place to do so.

The Way Ahead

British Land earned its corn last year, emphasising once

again that there is no substitute for buying the right

assets. The rewards – rises in rents and hence values –

do not appear instantly but take time to come through in

a long-term business like property investment, and then

are not on a wholly predictable timescale. 

1 Geophysics and ground radar are widely employed in archaeological
survey work but there is nothing hi-tech about the equipment used
on digs. Tools are idiosyncratic and jealously guarded – woe betide
the individual who borrows a trowel and fails to return it.

2 Shoes worn by citizens of Roman London, preserved in waterlogged 
soil for 1800 years.

3 Nelson’s left-handed sword of honour, given by the Corporation of
London in 1800. 

4 Gathering of the clans? In a city in which over 200 languages are
spoken, the Museum’s collections reflect the capital’s vast cultural
diversity.

4

2 3
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We have made money from residential property over

many years and we will continue to do so. A recent

purchase was the 50% interest in London & Henley

Holdings Limited acquired in December 2000 for £18

million net, after non-recourse debt. Our half interest in

this £170 million portfolio of 758 apartments, mostly in

the Central London area, together with our other

residential interests, are showing a 9.9% rise in value.

We are confident that the acquisition of 22 Homebase

stores with 865,000 sq ft of retail space, announced on 

9 April 2001, will be a good money-spinner too.

The excitements of e-commerce, overly expensive 

a year ago, now offer much more realistic prospects for

profit than before. We have established www.vicinitee.com

a community and building management website to serve

tenants at Broadgate and four other locations, and are

offering it elsewhere. There are also encouraging

indications of sales for vicinitee outside the Group. 

At Meadowhall we are currently installing a fibre optic

loop, and we are progressing a service centre for

retailers and customers. Our latest website there 

gets 34,000 hits per day.

Non-core business involving new technologies and

techniques will play an increasing part, and we have

established a management team to select and pursue

the most promising opportunities. In this rapidly changing

field the hardest task is to avoid the latest fad without

missing the bus. We have applied effort and ingenuity

rather than significant capital to our new economy

initiatives, but we are already earning from them. We

continue to believe that following fashion is much less

important than adding profits, value and service to tenants.

In Broadgate Estates Limited we have our own

homegrown building and estate management team,

87 strong, which now has built up its business so that

more than half of its revenue derives from managing

assets outside the British Land Group. It has a sustained

profit record.

The Outlook

Property’s overall ability to deliver geared income and capital

growth make it a particularly attractive medium to long-term

investment in the current economic climate. Our combination

of prime City and West End of London offices, coupled with

1 Before its annual excursion, the 250-year-old Lord Mayor’s Coach is
given special attention. Its iron underpinnings, wearing thin in places,
have been discreetly reinforced, lest His Worship be unceremoniously
decamped along the processional route.

2 The Lord Mayor’s coach, c1757, a masterpiece of virtuoso craftsmanship.

3 A gold reliquary pendant of the 15th century, found on the Thames
foreshore in 1994.

4 An extraordinary number of mannequins are assembled – and
maintained – to support the Museum’s costume collections.

41

2 3
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The Board

Last July we welcomed to the Board two new non-executive

directors. Derek Higgs who is Chairman of Partnerships

UK plc, Senior Adviser to UBS Warburg, a Non-Executive

Director of Allied Irish Banks, p.l.c., Egg plc and Jones

Lang LaSalle Inc., has joined us and been appointed

Deputy Chairman. Lord Burns is a Non-Executive Director

of Legal & General Group plc and Pearson plc and

Chairman of the Lottery Commission.  

We suffered a grievous loss this February in the death of

Shen Adam and we extend our sympathy to his wife, Barbara,

and their family. Shen Adam was Managing Director of

Broadgate Properties Plc which we took over in 1996, and

so quickly made his mark with us that he was appointed

to the British Land Board in April 1998. We miss him a lot.

My colleagues, our executives and staff have earned

my thanks for their successful efforts in a very active

year. They remain as vigorous as ever, and more than

most! We have appointed eight new directors to the

Board of The British Land Corporation, our principal

managing and operating company for the whole Group,

so that we are well set up for the future with a blend 

of experience and plenty of candidates for promotion. 

I thank also the dedicated and sparky management

teams at Broadgate and Meadowhall, and our agents 

and professional advisers.

John Ritblat Chairman

30 May 2001

1 Daring adventures – once ironclad warships came into fashion,
many of the redundant cannon from Nelson’s navy ended up as
traffic bollards. Some can still be found in situ, icons of history
among London’s busy streets.

2 Intensive care unit – minor surgery is performed on a fallen 
warrior, without the benefit of anaesthetics.

3 Decorated leather shoes from the site of London’s 
medieval waterfront.

4 Comb & manicure set, from a high-status home in Roman London.

1

our mainly out-of-town retail assets, is well positioned for

market conditions. The portfolio can be expected to provide

added growth in the future for shareholders, reinforced in

this low inflationary era by our financing structure.

Prosperity in our industry at large requires a 

stable regulatory climate, meaning no interference in

commercial lease terms and no more stealth stealing

through Stamp Duty, which has already deducted 

£350 million from shareholders’ value.

2

3 4
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Financial Review

Source of income £m

As at 31 March 

2001 2000
£m £m

Gross rental income (including share of joint ventures) 472.9 443.7

Net rental income 370.5 347.5

Share of operating profits of joint ventures 75.8 68.9

Other income 27.5 5.3

Administrative expenses (28.6) (26.7)

Profit before disposal of assets and interest 445.2 395.0

Disposals of fixed assets and property trading 35.2 44.3

Net interest payable (before exceptional item) (311.3) (282.9)

Profit before exceptional item and taxation 169.1 156.4

Exceptional item (83.6)

Taxation (10.2) (27.6)

Minority interest (0.1)

Profit after taxation 75.3 128.7

Earnings per share before exceptional item 28.7p 24.8p
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Group net
rental income

Share of 
operating profits
of joint ventures

Other income Disposals of
fixed assets 
and property
trading
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Gross rental income rose by 6.6% to £472.9 million in the

year ended 31 March 2001, including the Group’s share of

joint ventures (2000 – £443.7 million).  

In the same period, profits before tax, and before the

exceptional charge of £83.6 million relating to the offer 

to repurchase the unsecured bonds, increased by 8.1% 

to £169.1 million (2000 – £156.4 million).

Earnings per share, excluding the exceptional charge,

rose by 15.7% to 28.7 pence per share (2000 – 24.8 pence).

Profits after tax, and post the exceptional charge were

£75.3 million compared to £128.7 million in the prior year.

Net rental income

The main contribution to profits is from Group net rents.

Net rental income is up 6.6% in the year to £370.5 million

(2000 – £347.5 million), largely due to the impact of a 

full year of Meadowhall together with rent reviews at

Meadowhall, Broadgate and elsewhere.

Our joint ventures contributed £78.8 million of net

rental income (2000 – £71.0 million).  

The annualised net rental income including our share 

of joint ventures increased by £30.4 million to £492.9

million at 31 March 2001 (2000 – £462.5 million).

This rental income is supported by very long leases

to good covenants with upward only rent reviews. 

The average unexpired lease term within the portfolio is 

19 years with 83.8% of the current rent roll secured until

31 March 2011. At 31 March 2001, income quality has

been measured using a Dun & Bradstreet credit rating,

showing 72% of our rent roll as derived from either

negligible or low risk covenants with less than 1% from

high risk covenants.   

The Group’s direct property costs were reduced 

by £3.2 million to £17.6 million, representing only 4.5% 

of gross rents (2000 – £20.8 million, 5.6%), reflecting

non-recurring irrecoverable costs in 2000 relating to 

the acquisition of Meadowhall.

Share of operating profits of joint ventures

The rise in joint venture’s operating profits in 2001 to

£75.8 million (2000 – £68.9 million) was largely due to the

impact of new joint ventures established during the year.

Profit and loss account
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Other income

Income derived from other sources contributed £27.5 million

compared with £5.3 million in 2000. The increase primarily

reflects £15.3 million capital profit net of costs negotiated

as compensation from Standard Bank of South Africa and

related parties when Liberty International PLC purchased

the 29.7% stake for a higher price.

Disposals of fixed assets and property trading

The Group had another active year in terms of disposals of

property and other assets, realising substantial gains in the year

of £35.2 million. This compares to an exceptional contribution

of £44.3 million from property sales in the prior year.  

Portfolio activity has continued with profits of £14.2 million

achieved from trading and investment property sales,

including our share of joint ventures. The main contributors

were the disposal of the four City properties to the BL

West joint venture and from disposals by BL Universal. 

The Group also disposed of its stake in Selfridges,

realising a profit of £14.6 million. 
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Interest

Net interest costs including share of joint ventures 

rose from £282.9 million in 2000 to £311.3 million.

Group net interest payable increased by 6.7% 

to £249.6 million (2000 – £234.0 million) which is 

largely due to a full year’s effect of the acquisition 

of Meadowhall. Interest capitalised on developments 

was £4.0 million (2000 – £1.4 million).

The core recurring interest cover of 1.5 times group 

net rents to group net interest was at the same level 

as 2000.

Share of joint ventures’ net interest payable was 

£61.7 million compared to £48.9 million in 2000. This

reflects new external borrowings raised by joint ventures

recently established, which are largely without recourse 

to British Land or its partners.

Tax

The tax charge for the year is £10.2 million, an effective

rate of 11.9% (2000 – £27.6 million, a rate of 17.6%), which 

is achieved by the availability of capital allowances, prior

year items, and the exceptional charge.

Based upon the latest property valuation, there is an

estimated potential capital gains tax liability of £630 million.

Dividends

The Directors propose a final dividend of 7.9 pence per

share, making a total dividend of 11.5 pence per share in

the year, an increase of 5.5%.

1 Bill and Ben the Flowerpot Men came to the Museum on the 
death of their creator, along with Andy Pandy, Looby Loo and other
favourites from Watch with Mother. In a material age, curators need
to be highly selective about new acquisitions. They are looking for
display and research potential as well as context.

2 The Museum’s educational workshops are enormous fun. Here
schoolchildren learn the essentials of wig-making, a major London
trade in the era of Samuel Pepys.
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Profit and loss account (continued)
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Net assets

In 2001, net asset value rose by 15.6% to £4,154.4 million

compared with £3,593.5 million at 31 March 2000. This

rise was largely due to the revaluation of the property

portfolio, which increased by £545.1 million, reflecting an

overall rise of 6.7% during the year. Retained profits were

£15.7 million, after the £74.6 million exceptional charge

post tax. 

As a consequence, net assets per share increased

from 694 pence to 802 pence per share. On a fully

diluted basis the increase was 13.7% from 681 pence 

to 774 pence per share.    

The total return was 17.2%, and excluding the

exceptional charge was 19.3% (2000 – 11.9%).

Group properties

The value of British Land’s properties is now £7,334.0

million (2000 - £6,971.2 million). During the year,

£132.9 million was spent on over 10 investment

acquisitions and £112.5 million was incurred on the

development programme. In the same period, sales 

of around 28 properties were achieved realising

aggregate total proceeds of £439.5 million.

Investments in joint ventures

Net investment in joint ventures, increased by £141.5 million

to £731.8 million at the year end (2000 – £590.3 million).

During the year, three new joint ventures have been

established, and we now have 15 joint ventures and

partnerships owning a total share of £1,525.9 million of

properties. Including our partners’ share of joint ventures,

total assets under management are £10.5 billion. 

Other investments

The fall in other investments was due to the disposal 

of Selfridges shares for £65.4 million, realising a profit 

of £14.6 million.

Net debt

Net debt of £3,716.8 million at the year end was marginally

lower than at the end of 2000 of £3,762.3 million. The

mortgage ratio declined to 46% at 31 March 2001 

(2000 – 49%) due largely to the revaluation surplus. 

At 31 March 2001 the market values of net debt were

£232.0 million more than their book values. This

compares to £178.8 million last year, and reflects the

underlying fall in interest rates over the year. After

notional tax relief of 30%, the adjustment to net assets

would be 31.3 pence per share (2000 – 24.2 pence).

Two new unsecured bank syndications were

completed during the year, which together with new

bilateral bank facilities provide an additional £640 million

of committed facilities for the Group.  

Our share of joint venture net debt at 31 March 2001

is £727.0 million, which is largely without recourse to

British Land.

Outlook

In terms of future prospects, the key drivers of growth 

in profits, cash flows and net asset value will be rent

reversions on review or re-let, and new developments.

There has been significant rental value growth during 

the year, increasing the reversionary potential from the

portfolio to £112.7 million from £90.0 million in 2000. 

The expanded development programme similarly offers

strong growth potential for rental income with an

estimated rental value of £131.8 million per annum 

in aggregate when complete.

A feature of the results was the further reduction 

in the weighted average interest rate to 6.6% currently

from 7.05% in 2000 and 7.3% in 1999. This reflects 

the successful redemption of two higher interest 

bearing bonds, which lower the on-going interest 

charge. The securitisation of the Sainsbury’s

supermarkets is expected to increase the current 

rate to approximately 6.8%.
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2001 2000
£m £m

Group properties 7,334.0 6,971.2

Investments in joint ventures 731.8 590.3

Other investments 73.7 150.4

Net debt (3,716.8) (3,762.3)

Other net current liabilities (268.3) (356.1)

Net assets 4,154.4 3,593.5

Net Asset Value

– basic per share 802p 694p

– fully diluted per share 774p 681p

Mortgage ratio (debt/property & investments) 46% 49%

Debt/equity ratio 89% 105%

The above include the external valuation surplus on development and trading properties

Balance sheet 
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The Group finances its activities with a mixture of equity,

public and private debt issues, securitisations, convertible

bonds and bank borrowings. Through a balance of debt

and equity finance, together with a wide variety of debt

sources, the Group minimises its cost of capital. Most

joint ventures have their own financing, details of which

are provided on pages 28 to 34.

The Group’s financing policy is to leverage equity

returns through strategic gearing. The mortgage ratio 

of debt to assets, the relevant gearing measure, is

maintained at or around 50% subject to the Board’s 

view of the market, the future growth prospects of the

property portfolio and recurring cash flows.

The Group’s income principally derives from rents

secured on long leases, which are subject to upward

only review. The Group manages downside risk by

controlling its recurring interest cover and available

liquidity against current and projected levels of gearing.  

At 31 March 2001, the Group had gross debt of

£3,811.0 million and cash of £94.2 million, giving net

debt of £3,716.8 million, compared with £3,762.3 million

at the end of 2000. 

Objectives 

The aim of British Land’s liability management is to fund

the Group appropriately to service its constantly evolving

business strategy and needs from time to time.  

The principal objectives are to ensure that:

– Significant committed undrawn facilities are available

to support current and future business requirements.

– The Group’s debt is supported by recurring,

committed income.

– The Group’s cost of capital is minimised.

Liability management 

Liability management is not a profit centre and no

speculative transactions are undertaken. The Group’s

debt and derivative positions are continuously reviewed

in combination with constant updating of information on

likely and potential transactions.

The Group maintains a balance between longer term

(over ten years) and shorter term (under ten years)

financing. The latter provide flexibility of repayment at no

penalty. Acquisitions are often funded initially by shorter

term revolving credit facilities and then refinanced with

longer term funding when market conditions are favourable.  

Short term financing is principally raised through

bilateral and syndicated revolving bank facilities, which

can be repaid at will and redrawn again when the need

arises. All bank facilities are unsecured and on standard

terms to maintain operational flexibility. 85% of the group’s

borrowings are on an unsecured basis at 31 March 2001.

Medium to longer term financing comprises public and

private bond issues and securitisations. British Land’s

property portfolio is well placed to take advantage of new

asset specific and cash flow borrowing financing structures.  

Funding risk is spread by using a range of banks and

a variety of sources of finance. The maturity profile of

debt is managed by spreading the repayment dates and

extending and expanding bank facility terms. 

Weighted average debt maturity at 31 March 2001 

is 17.8 years. Less than 8% of gross debt matures in the

next twelve months and some 55% of gross debt falls

due for repayment in more than ten years.

Interest rate management

The Group borrows principally in Sterling at both fixed

and floating rates of interest, then uses derivatives to

generate the desired interest rate profile and manage

the Group’s exposure to interest rate fluctuations.  

Under normal circumstances, the Group maintains

around 85% of debt (subject to a 5% tolerance) at fixed

rates to establish certainty over long term cash flows.

The time horizon for this policy is a rolling 3-5 year view.  

At 31 March 2001, 83% of net debt was at fixed rates,

6% capped and 11% at variable rates.  

In order to achieve the Group’s objectives, the use 

of derivatives is managed and reviewed by the Board of

British Land Financing Limited and its Derivative Sub-

Committee, which includes three executive directors.  

The proportion of debt held at variable interest rates

is reviewed as new transactions (whether corporate,

direct property or financing) emerge, to gauge their 

likely impact on the overall mix. Paying off redundant

derivatives can be expensive (or profitable), as can 

Financing policy and financial risk management
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being unprotected against rising interest rates.

The Group’s exposure to each swap counterparty 

is monitored on a regular basis, including an update 

of individual credit ratings.

Foreign currency management

To manage the impact of foreign exchange movements,

the Group borrows in currencies other than Sterling,

principally Irish Punts, as well as using currency swaps,

in order to match foreign currency assets with foreign

currency liabilities.  

On occasion, the Group borrows in freely available

currencies other than Sterling when attractive terms 

are available to do so. The Group hedges its foreign

currency risk on such borrowings through derivatives.

The Group has no material unhedged net assets 

or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. 

Liquidity and cash management

Revolving bank facilities lubricate the Group’s financing.

Undrawn committed facilities at the year end totalled

£1,228.7 million and cash and deposits amounted to

£94.2 million.

In addition to maintaining a high level of undrawn

facilities, new financing structures such as securitisations

are employed. The property portfolio is stringently

reviewed to identify appropriate properties for sale, with a

view to converting non-cash assets into cash if required.

Commitment to investment or development expenditure

can be restricted to maintain a prudent level of liquidity.

Cash levels are monitored to ensure that the right

level of resources is available to meet the Group’s

operational requirements. Deposits are placed having

regard to the standing of the counterparty and optimising

the rate of return.

Financing policy and financial risk management (continued)

Effective net sterling debt – forecast exposure to interest rates £m

As at 31 March 2001 

These projections rely on forecasts and assumptions based on current known positions and reasonable expectations; they will be affected by changing circumstances and future opportunities.

The effects of the repurchase of Unsecured Bonds 2016 and 2023 on 1 May 2001, and the Securitisation announced on 29 May 2001 are not included.

Profit and loss account and balance sheet management

The Group monitors the current and projected financial

position using several key internally generated reports:

cash flow, borrowing, debt maturity and derivatives

schedules. The Group also undertakes sensitivity

analysis to assess the impact of proposed transactions

and movement in interest rates on the key balance

sheet, liquidity and profitability ratios.

At the Group’s option, the £146.6 million 6%

Irredeemable Convertible Bond can be converted into

preference shares, augmenting equity. These preference

shares can also be switched back to Bonds.

John Weston Smith Finance Director

30 May 2001
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Portfolio Valuation Growth 2001 2000

% %

Offices

City 19.7 1.4

West End 4.2 10.0

Other 2.0 1.1

All offices 16.7 2.4

Retail

Shops (5.7) 2.2

Retail warehouses 2.2 8.4

Supermarkets (1.1) 2.3

Shopping centres (0.7) 8.3

All retail (1.0) 5.9

Residential 9.9 –

Industrial and distribution 3.0 6.3

Leisure and other 1.9 2.2

After adjustment for purchases, properties awaiting development,

sales and other expenditure, the growth was 6.7% (2000 – 3.9%).

2001 2000

Current Net Yield (%) 5.9 5.9

Reversionary Net Yield on current rental values (%) 7.3 7.1

Reversionary income (£m) 113 90

Annualised Net Rents:

British Land Group (£m) 395.9 388.0

Share of joint ventures (£m) 97.0 74.5

492.9 462.5

Weighted Average Lease Length (years) 19.0 19.9

83.8% of rental income is secured beyond 2011

Portfolio Lot Size Group Including JVs*

Number % of value Number % of value

Less than £5m 166 2.7 750 8.1

£5m to £20m 61 9.3 141 14.4

£20m to £50m 37 15.0 62 17.8

£50m to £100m 8 7.9 16 11.2

£100m to £250m 11 22.3 14 18.8

Greater than £250m 7 42.8 7 29.7

290 100.0 990 100.0

The portfolio is dominated by large assets, with 37 properties accounting

for 59.7% of the property portfolio (including joint ventures).

* includes partners’ shares of joint ventures.

Rental income by type

Industrial/Other 2

Leisure 4

Office 46

Residential 2

Retail 6

Retail warehouse 6

Shopping centre 19

Supermarket 15

Portfolio Valuation by Location

All offices 46

All retail 42

Industrial & distribution 1

Leisure & other 3

Residential 2

Development 6

Valuation by use and location

As at 31 March 2001 %
represented

Industrial & Leisure and by joint Total
Offices Retail distribution other Residential Development Total Total ventures 2000

High Street Supermarkets Shopping
shops & & retail centres

department warehouses
stores

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m % % %

London: City 3,385.9 19.3 225.0 3,630.2 41.0% 2.7% 38.7%
West End 460.8 11.6 2.0 5.1 141.3 620.8 7.0% 0.2% 6.5%
Greater London 5.1 12.2 214.6 23.6 65.0 0.3 41.3 362.1 4.1% 1.2% 4.5%

Sub-total 3,851.8 23.8 214.6 23.6 86.3 5.4 407.6 4,613.1 52.1% 4.1% 49.7%
South East 89.2 78.9 255.5 140.7 25.6 63.3 129.7 32.5 815.4 9.2% 4.0% 8.7%
Wales and South West 3.4 68.6 288.4 0.6 13.9 21.9 3.2 400.0 4.5% 1.9% 5.0%
Midlands and East Anglia 55.0 66.5 352.7 104.3 31.5 57.5 667.5 7.5% 3.0% 7.8%
North of England 17.4 117.4 385.6 1,286.8 24.5 49.9 10.6 1,892.2 21.4% 2.1% 23.0%
Scotland and Northern Ireland 34.4 62.9 65.9 130.7 16.8 0.8 311.5 3.5% 1.5% 3.9%
Republic of Ireland 0.7 111.5 48.0 160.2 1.8% 0.6% 1.9%

Total £m 4,051.2 418.8 1,562.7 1,774.6 87.6 269.7 138.3 557.0 8,859.9 100.0% 17.2% 100.0%

Total % 45.7% 4.7% 17.6% 20.0% 1.0% 3.1% 1.6% 6.3% 100.0%

% represented
by joint ventures 3.1% 3.8% 3.7% 1.8% 0.2% 2.3% 1.0% 1.3% 17.2%

Total 2000 % 43.4% 5.7% 18.6% 21.6% 1.2% 4.2% 5.3% 100.0%

Property portfolio analysis (including share of joint ventures)



Property Asset Management

The Company has, during the year, appointed Peter Clarke,

Daniel Peltz and Timothy Roberts as Heads of 

Asset Management.

At the year end the portfolio, including the joint

ventures, comprised approximately 990 properties with

3,055 leases. During the year some 150 properties were

sold and some 720 rent reviews were settled, 27 of them

in the City of London, and 135 leases were granted

during the year.

Numerous initiatives have been taken. Surrenders of

leases have been negotiated to re-let, at enhanced rents,

generating relevant comparative evidence for rental

reviews and enhancing capital values. This activity is

particularly prevalent in the retail portfolio. In respect of

the supermarkets, negotiations were concluded in

respect of five major store extensions with profitable

funding by the Company.

The Public House portfolio, the joint venture with

Scottish and Newcastle, generated considerable activity

with an additional annual income of £600,000 being

produced from rent reviews. A portfolio of 152 properties

which were regarded as ex-growth is being sold.

Valuation

The valuation of all properties in the British Land portfolio

and situated in the United Kingdom (but excluding Tesco

British Land Property Partnership and Tesco BL Holdings)

was undertaken by Chartered Surveyors, Weatherall Green

and Smith. Their full certificate appears on pages 37 

to 40 (excluding supporting schedules). They have also

produced separate certificates in respect of each of the

joint ventures valued by them.

The meaningful increases in the rental values has

resulted in our properties in the City and West End of

London increasing in value by 19.7% and 4.2% respectively.

Values of other office properties saw more modest

increases in value of 2.0%.

The performance of the Retail portfolio has varied.

Values of the retail warehouse investments have

improved by 2.2%, values of the high street properties

have fallen by 5.7%, and shopping centres have fallen by

0.7%. Our supermarket portfolio has fallen by 1.1%. This

valuation outcome reflects how property investors have

seen what has been a very difficult year for many retailers.

The values of Leisure and similar properties

increased by 1.9%, and those in the residential sector

increased by 9.9%.

Robert Bowden Property Investment Director

30 May 2001
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The Property Portfolio

1 Pavlova’s ballet costume for Le Cygne, designed by Leon Bakst.

2 Second-century marble sculpture of Mercury, one of many treasures 
found at the site of the Temple of Mithras in Bucklersbury.

1 2
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The following 9 principal investment properties, each with

an individual value of more than £50 million, in aggregate

represent 71% by value of the total Group portfolio;

The Broadgate Centre, London EC2

Tenure is either freehold or virtual freehold (999 year leases

at rents of £50 or less per annum per building without

review) unless otherwise stated. The development was

undertaken in phases between 1984 and 1991 and 

is continuing with Hamilton House and 201 Bishopsgate

which are being held in readiness for future development.  

The existing buildings incorporate the latest

mechanical and electrical services and finishes. The

flexibility incorporated in their construction has enabled

the tenants to update their space as technology and

operational requirements have changed.

The estate provides office, retail and leisure

accommodation totalling 350,650 sq m/3,772,990 sq ft 

on 12.14 hectares/30 acres at a strategic location in the

City of London, (see table below).

Total passing rent at Broadgate is a little under

£148.75 million per annum which is about £457.30 per sq m/

£42.50 per sq ft overall. Market conditions have continued

to improve with headline rents being achieved in the City

of London at between £673 per sq m and £700 per sq m/

£62.50 to £65.00 per sq ft at the year end. Over the

coming year, rent reviews are due on 79,000 sq m/

850,000 sq ft of accommodation which are expected to

show significant uplifts on the passing rent.

The Sensitivity Analysis overleaf has been prepared

by Weatherall Green & Smith and illustrates the possible

impact on value that changes in yield and rental might have.

Broadgate Estates Limited, a wholly owned

subsidiary of the Company, maintains the external and

common areas. The development provides a distinctive

environment for almost 30,000 employees of some of 

the world’s largest corporations and leading professional

practices. We are improving the estate through a series 

of initiatives which will include additional retail facilities

being provided at Broadgate Circle.

www.vicinitee.com is a community website recently

developed by Broadgate Estates and introduced to the

tenants. It provides important local information, including

travel data and local amenities to occupiers and visitors.

1
1 The Broadgate Centre

Area
Building sq m sq ft Principal tenants Next rent review dates 

1, 2 and 3 Finsbury Avenue 44,600 479,900 UBS Warburg and Henderson Administration June – Sept 2002

1-3, 4, 6 Broadgate & Broadgate Circle 74,800 804,850 Lehman Bros, Tokyo Mitsubishi & Dec 2001 – Feb 2004

Henderson Administration 

100 Liverpool Street 35,400 380,900 UBS Warburg Dec 2003 

135 Bishopsgate 33,400 359,380 NatWest Feb 2004 

155 Bishopsgate 38,100 409,960 Baring Investment Services July 2004 – Feb 2005

175 Bishopsgate 35,750 384,670 European Bank for Reconstruction & Dec 2001

Development 

199 Bishopsgate 13,400 144,180 ABN AMRO Holdings Sept 2003 – Sept 2005 

Broadwalk House 27,800 299,130 Credit Lyonnais & Ashurst Morris Crisp July 2004 

Exchange House 35,700 384,130 Herbert Smith, Foreign & Colonial and Dec 2000 – Oct 2005

Société Generale 

Hamilton House 7,700 82,850 Property held for Redevelopment

1 Exchange Place (125 year leasehold) 4,000 43,040 The Broadgate Club June 2003 

201 Bishopsgate (jointly owned Site held for development – planning consent 

with Railtrack PLC) granted for building of 66,000 sq m/710,000 sq ft
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Broadgate Sensitivity Analysis Prepared by Weatherall Green & Smith March 2001

Broadgate’s value at 31 March 2001 is £2,896 million

Net Effective Estimated Rental Value Rates (£ per sq ft):

An Estimated Rental Value of £57 per sq ft was used as a

base. 

Percentage increases were applied to this base to reach

£55, £60, £65 and £70 per sq ft.

An Estimated Rental Value of £57 per sq ft was used as

the base because this rate has been applied to the majority

of the accommodation within Broadgate.

Net Effective Estimated Rental Values are calculated by

adjusting ‘headline' rents, assuming a notional 6 month rent

free period over a ten year term.

Nominal Equivalent Yields:

The Nominal Equivalent Yields are calculated assuming 

rents are received annually in arrears which is usual

valuation methodology. In practice, however, rents are

received quarterly in advance.

Properties included:

1 Finsbury Avenue 155 Bishopsgate

2 Finsbury Avenue 175 Bishopsgate

3 Finsbury Avenue 199 Bishopsgate

1, 2, 3 Broadgate Broadwalk House

4 Broadgate Exchange House

6 Broadgate Broadgate Health Club

8-12 Broadgate 135 Bishopsgate

Properties excluded (held for development):

Eldon House Hamilton House

201 Bishopsgate Broadgate House

Nominal
Equivalent Capital values at various rentals and yields (£ million)
Yields

5.50% 3,198 3,296 3,448 3,702 3,957

5.75% 3,055 3,148 3,292 3,534 3,776

6.00% 2,925 3,014 3,151 3,381 3,611

6.23% 2,812 2,896 3,028 3,248 3,468

6.50% 2,690 2,770 2,895 3,104 3,313

Net Effective
Estimated £55.00 £57.00 £60.00 £65.00 £70.00
Rental Values (£ per sq ft )
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Meadowhall Shopping Centre, Sheffield

Meadowhall is one of the largest and most successful

shopping centres in the UK, being located some 5 km 

from Sheffield City Centre and with immediate access 

to Junction 34 of the M1 motorway. Comprising a site of 

51 hectares/126 acres the Centre provides free parking 

for 12,000 vehicles and is also served by dedicated train,

tramway and bus service, which are used by around 

20% of its customers.

For multiple retailers at Meadowhall, 80% are in the

top 10 performing outlets of their company: for 24% they

are the retailers’ best performing outlet in the country.

Customer visits for the year have increased by 853,000 

to 23,539,000.

The rents passing at the half-year end were £55 million

per annum, now increased to £60 million per annum as a

result of further rent reviews completed. This will increase

to an estimated £66 million per annum when the balance

of rent reviews and lettings have been completed.

Since we acquired this investment in November 1999 

a total of 45 rent reviews have been completed and a further

71 remain outstanding in respect of the current phases.

Over the past 12 months, 13 new lettings have taken

place and 7 retailers have relocated to larger premises,

two major stores have opened extensions and 15 occupiers

have refurbished their shops.

Current Initiatives include:

– Installation of a fibre optic ring to include a retailer

intranet.

– Introduction of a customer loyalty card scheme.

– An extension at Market Street to include customer 

service facilities and additional retail space.

– Letting to Allders for their new Home concept 

(part of store formerly occupied by C&A).

– Refurbishment and improvements to the Oasis 

food court.

Regent’s Place, London NW1

The Euston Road frontage to Regent’s Place, a 4.2 hectare/

10.40 acre complex has undergone a dramatic change in

the past 12 months. The development of the 18,200 sq m/

195,800 sq ft headquarters building at 2 & 3 Triton Square,

pre-let to Abbey National is nearing completion. At 350

Regent’s Place, the 12,100 sq m/130,200 sq ft office

scheme is well advanced and available for occupation in

the Autumn. The high level of specification includes the

provision of broadband technology.

This thriving new West End business quarter is already home

to major tenants including HM Government, Bank One, Sema,

Logica,Fox Kids and Regus. With total floor space,on completion

of the two developments of 114,400 sq m/1,230,900 sq ft

and potential for considerably more, the site is projected to

house a working population of about 10,000 people.

The newly launched Regent’s Place Travel Plan, sent

out to Shareholders with the Annual Report, recognises

the ease of accessibility to the site by public transport.

Additional copies of the Regent’s Place Travel Plan can be

obtained directly from the Company’s head office. The needs

of the working community are reflected in the provision 

of a large crèche, Sainsbury’s convenience supermarket,

Holmes Place Health Club, a stockbrokers and food and

coffee outlets provided by Starbucks and Pret a Manger.

This summer will witness the completion of the large

public space at Triton Square, when landscaping and public

art will make a focal point within Regent’s Place.

Last year we completed a comprehensive external CCTV

camera security system,a development wide fire alarm system

and  upgrading of paved areas, roadways and planted areas.

Total net annual income from Regent’s Place is

approximately £18.50 million. The strength of the location

and the significant rental growth evidenced in the West End

office market will apply to the coming round of rent reviews

at 338 Euston Road and 1, 4 and 7 Triton Square.

Broadgate Estates manages the external and common

areas at this development. www.vicinitee.com extends to

the Regent’s Place occupiers.

1 Meadowhall Shopping Centre

2 Regent’s Place
1

2



Teesside Retail Park, Stockton-on-Tees

Teesside Retail Park, situated at the intersection of the A66

and A19 trunk roads between Stockton-on-Tees and

Middlesbrough, dominates out of town retail in this area.

The Company’s holding consists of:-

Phase I

The original “horse shoe” development purchased in 1992

and extended in 1998, has 31,500 sq m/340,000 sq ft of

open A1 retail floor space. There are 28 units ranging in

size from 315 sq m/3,400 sq ft to 3,400 sq m/36,700 sq ft.

Tenants include Currys, PC World, Boots, JJB Sports, Carpetright,

Sports Soccer, Homebase, Scottish Power and Mothercare.

The total passing rent at Teeside is approximately £4.38

million per annum which is about £160 per sq m/£14.85

per sq ft on occupied space. Recent lettings have taken

place between £237 per sq m/£22 per sq ft and £280

per sq m/£26 per sq ft. Rent reviews take place on a

rolling programme, commencing in June 2001.

During the year the car park was extensively reconfigured

and upgraded to improve traffic and pedestrian circulation.

In addition, a new scheme of branded signage was introduced.

As part of the asset management programme, units are

taken back from tenants where appropriate and divided

and let to new tenants at enhanced rents. The Company

is capitalising on the open retail planning consent for the

Park to attract a much broader mix of retailers to the Park. 

Phase II

3.3 hectares/8.10 acres of development land purchased

in 1998 and located at the “gateway” to the Park, already has

planning consent for 1,513 sq m/16,280 sq ft of restaurant and

4,060 sq m/43,690 sq ft of retail floor space. Units totalling

1,086 sq m/11,690 sq ft have been or are in the process of

being constructed and let to KFC, TGI Friday’s and Frankie

and Benny’s. Various options for the land with retail consent

include the opportunity to relocate tenants from Phase I, thus

freeing more space with unrestricted retail planning consent.

Phase III

11 hectares/27.2 acres of land surrounding the existing leisure

development (not in the Company’s ownership) is suitable

for development for commercial uses. This has a planning

consent for a 100 bedroom hotel and a pub and discussions

are in train with a major national retailer for a new unit

on a significant portion of the remaining land. A wider

masterplan includes further commercial use as well as a

second major access to the Park and a bus interchange.

The Company also owns the Pets at Home unit, 740 sq m/

8,000 sq ft, purchased in 1998 and the adjoining

reversionary interest in Toys R Us.

St. Stephen’s Green Shopping Centre, Dublin, 
Republic of Ireland

This distinctive covered shopping centre has become a major

landmark in the heart of Dublin. It comprises 30,200 sq m/

324,950 sq ft of retail and restaurant space. The Centre

has an adjoining multi-storey car park comprising 1,127

spaces, of which 675 spaces are owned by the Company.

The Centre is located at the top of Grafton Street,

which is Dublin’s premier shopping street and during 

the last year the Company has carried out significant

refurbishment to the main entrance improving both the

appearance and pedestrian flow.

The Company has also constructed a feature staircase

between the first and second floors improving pedestrian

flow and assisting in the leasing areas of the second floor

which were previously service space.

Net income at 31 March 2001 was circa IR£7.30

million per annum.

The Company has agreed to sell 73% of this investment

to, simultaneously acquiring a 50% interest in the ILAC

Shopping Centre in Dublin, from, Irish Life.
24
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1 Teesside Retail Park

2 St Stephen’s Green

3 The Plaza Shopping Centre

1 2 3
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The Plaza Shopping Centre and Plaza Tower, 
East Kilbride, Scotland

The Plaza Centre is an enclosed shopping centre, originally

constructed in 1972, comprehensively refurbished in 1989

and further improved by the creation of a new atrium in

2000, which provides the link to the next phase of

development known as Centre West, described in the

Development section of this report. The Centre has 

27,840 sq m/300,000 sq ft of retail space, together with

the Plaza Tower, which is a 14,976 sq m/161,140 sq ft

office building. The Centre also includes a 990 space

multi-storey car park.

Major names in retailing are represented and rents

passing are some £5 million per annum. The Centre has

been actively managed during the year including the

reletting of five retail units.

Major refurbishment has been undertaken to the

common areas at Plaza Tower.

122 Leadenhall Street, London EC3

This 16,650 sq m/179,150 sq ft office building is situated

on a site of nearly 0.4 hectares/1 acre in the insurance

district near the Lloyds of London building. The

accommodation is on basement, lower ground, ground,

mezzanine and eleven upper floors. The principal tenants

are Credit Agricole and Banque Indosuez with the ground

floor retail space of 812 sq m/8,740 sq ft principally let to

Marks & Spencer. The property was constructed in 1969

but substantially rebuilt in 1996. It is situated close to the

site of the proposed Swiss Re Tower and within the area

of the City being promoted by the City of London Planning

Authority for future tower schemes.

The passing rent for this property is close to £6.6 million

per annum.

Greyhound Retail Park, Chester

This property was purchased in 1992 and is located to the

west of the Town Centre in the principal area for retail

warehousing. The Park extends to 19,065 sq m/205,200

sq ft of predominantly retail floor space. There are two

leisure units (cinema and bowling alley) where the rents

are based on retail values. Tenants include Carpetright,

Scottish Power, Texstyle World, DFS, Roseby’s and Pets 

At Home. All except one of the retail units benefit from 

a valuable open A1 non food planning consent.

The total rent passing is about £2.8 million per annum

which for the retail space is £121.95 per sq m/£11.33 per

sq ft. The majority of the retail units are currently subject

to rent review and substantial increases are expected.

Rental evidence at  double the passing rent has been

achieved on the Park by way of a relocation of one of the

tenants and a further third party letting. Terms have been

agreed subject to Planning  to construct a small stand

alone retail unit on part of the car park. Planning consent

has been granted for the external refurbishment of all of

the units and the common parts which will include

recladding elevations, new entrances, improved traffic and

pedestrian management, signage and landscaping.

The Eastgate Shopping Centre, Basildon

The enclosed Centre represents a major part of Basildon

town centre. The total floor area is 68,100 sq m/732,750

sq ft and includes a small business centre, a multi-storey

car park and two large office buildings in addition to the

retail malls.

The Shopping Centre comprises 116 retail units and

two anchor stores. Principal retail tenants include; Allders

(approx. 18,580 sq m/199,920 sq ft), Savacentre (approx.

15,265 sq m/164,250 sq ft), Primark, Next and Virgin. New

Look will upgrade to a new 1,375 sq m/14,790 sq ft store

during summer 2001 having taken a new lease of part of

the former C & A store. The main office tenants are CGNU

and The Secretary of State.

On settlement of the outstanding rent reviews, the

total rent is expected to be approximately £8.85 millon

per annum.

1
1 122 Leadenhall Street

2 Greyhound Retail Park

3 Eastgate Shopping Centre

2 3
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Other Major Investment Properties in the Portfolio 
(all freehold and wholly owned unless otherwise stated) include:

Key: Region CIT=London City, EA=East Anglia, EIR=Republic of Ireland, EM=East Midlands, GL=Greater London, N=North, NI=Northern Ireland, NW=North West, SCO=Scotland, SE=South East, SW=South West, WAL=Wales, WE=London West End,
WM=West Midlands, Y&H=Yorkshire & Humberside.

Properties valued: £40m – £50m

Offices CIT London EC3, 51 Eastcheap 2 Office building on basement, ground and six upper floors. 7,500 1987

SE Reigate, Kingswood, Legal & General House 1 Offices on 3 floors in 17.4 hectares of grounds.  1500 car spaces. 23,200 1988

WE London W1, 2-16 Baker Street 8 Office building on basement, ground and eight upper floors including ground floor retail of 1,549 sq metres 

(long leasehold). 8,300 1955

WE London W1, Leicester Square, Swiss Centre 18 City centre office, leisure and retail building on two basement, ground and fifteen upper floors. 9,000 1964

WM Birmingham, Temple Court 17 Office on basement, ground and six upper floors including ground floor retail of 1,436 sq m and 

195 basement car spaces. 24,700 1993

Properties valued: £30m – £40m

Supermarkets EM Nottingham, J Sainsbury 1 Out of town store with petrol filling station on a retail park. 7,100 1989

EM Northampton, J Sainsbury 1 Out of town store with petrol filling station. 6,900 1988

SW Swindon, J Sainsbury 1 Out of town store with petrol filling station. 7,200 1997

Offices WE London W1, York House, Great Cumberland Place 17 Office, retail, leisure and residential building on basement, ground and seven upper floors (long leasehold). 9,900 1955

Retail WM Birmingham, Rackhams 1 Department store on basement, ground and seven upper floors 46,500 1964

Properties valued: £20m – £30m

Supermarket EA Cambridge, J Sainsbury 1 Suburban store. 6,700 1978

Retail Warehouse EM Northampton, St. James' Retail Park 8 Edge of town retail park. 17,800 1988

GL Croydon, Purley Way 3 Out of town retail park. 5,500 1987

Supermarket GL London W4, Chiswick, J Sainsbury 1 Suburban store 6,100 1980

GL London N1, Islington, J Sainsbury 1 Town centre store. 6,200 1985

Retail Warehouse N Stockton-on-Tees, Portrack Lane 1 Out of town retail warehouse. 11,300 1996

Supermarket NW Preston, Bamber Bridge, J Sainsbury 1 Out of town store with petrol filling station. 5,900 1989

Office SCO Edinburgh, Orchard Brae House 28 Office building on eight floors with 205 car spaces. 9,800 1979

Retail Warehouse SCO Glasgow, Auldhouse Retail Park 7 Suburban retail park. 10,900 1991

SE Oxford, Botley Rd, Oxford Retail Park 2 Out of town retail park. 7,100 1988

SE Colchester, The Tollgate Centre 12 Out of town retail park. 10,700 1988

Supermarkets SE Orpington, Locksbottom, J Sainsbury 2 Suburban store. 6,400 1980

SE Portsmouth, J Sainsbury 1 Edge of town store. 5,300 1988

SW Bridgwater, J Sainsbury 1 Out of town store with petrol filling station. 5,400 1989

WAL Cardiff, Roath, J Sainsbury 1 Out of town store including Homebase of 3,066 sq m. 9,600 1984

WM Rugby, J Sainsbury 1 Out of town store with petrol filling station. 5,900 1989

WM Birmingham, Selly Oak, J Sainsbury 1 Suburban store. 5,800 1988

Industrial Y&H York, Clifton Moor 92 Edge of town industrial estate on 20 hectares. 41,300 1980

Leisure Y&H Leeds, Kirkstall Road 11 Edge of town leisure park. 18,600 1998

The British Land Company PLC

Date built
Number Property Area in or last

Property use type Region Property name of leases description sq metres refurbished
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Supermarkets Y&H Grimsby, J Sainsbury 1 Out of town store with petrol filling station. 5,300 1988

Y&H Sheffield, J Sainsbury 1 Out of town store. 8,200 1982

Properties valued: £10m – £20m

Shopping Centre EM Sutton-in-Ashfield, Idlewells Centre 48 Covered shopping centre. 13,100 1972

Supermarket EM Leicester, J Sainsbury 2 Edge of town store with 2,823 sq m of other retail. 7,800 1987

Distribution GL Greenford, Scottish & Newcastle Depot 1 High bay distribution facility. 12,000 1998

Leisure GL Croydon, Valley Park 7 Out of town leisure park. 9,400 1995

Supermarkets GL London E18, South Woodford, J Sainsbury 1 Town centre store with a cinema and 1,115 sq m of other retail. 4,900 1980

GL London W13, West Ealing, J Sainsbury 1 Town centre store with 1,108 sq m of other retail. 6,100 1980

GL London E17, Walthamstow, J Sainsbury 1 Town centre store with 373 sq m of other retail (long leasehold). 5,400 1981

GL Chadwell Heath, J Sainsbury 1 Suburban store. 5,000 1983

NW Altrincham, J Sainsbury 2 Town Centre store including 235 sq m of other retail (long leasehold). 4,900 1985

NW Birkenhead, J Sainsbury 1 Suburban store with petrol filling station. 3,500 1984

Retail Warehouse SCO Dumbarton, St James Retail Park 6 Out of town retail park. 6,400 1990

SCO Elgin, Springfield Retail Park 6 Out of town retail park. 8,500 1987

Office SE Godalming, Westbrook Mills 2 Office building on three floors on a site  of 2.2 hectares. 5,300 1983

Supermarkets SE Banbury, J Sainsbury 1 Suburban store with Petrol filling station. 5,600 1994

SE Southampton, Lordshill, J Sainsbury 1 Out of town store in district centre with petrol filling station and 4,883 sq m of other retail and leisure. 9,400 1970

SE Bedford, Kempston, J Sainsbury 1 Suburban store with 2,058 sq m of other retail (long leasehold). 7,900 1975

SW Weston Super Mare, J Sainsbury 1 Out of town store with 4,835 sq m of other retail and a public house. 11,300 1970

WAL Swansea, J Sainsbury 1 Edge of town store with petrol filling station (long leasehold). 8,100 1983

WAL Cardiff, Thornhill, J Sainsbury 1 Out of town store including petrol filling station and 466 sq m of other retail 5,200 1984

WAL Newport, J Sainsbury 1 Out of town store with 190 sq m of other retail. 5,500 1984

WM Hereford, J Sainsbury 1 Edge of town store with petrol filling station. 5,200 1986

WM Burton Upon Trent, J Sainsbury 1 Town centre store. 6,300 1997

WM Hanley, J Sainsbury 1 Edge of town store with petrol filling station. 5,600 1987

WM Worcester, Blackpole, J Sainsbury 1 Suburban store with petrol filling station. 4,600 1980

Y&H Bradford, J Sainsbury 1 Suburban store with petrol filling station and including Homebase of 3,693 sq m. 9,000 1982

Y&H York, J Sainsbury 1 Edge of town store with 3,026 sq m of other retail. 8,000 1984

Date built
Number Property Area in or last

Property use type Region Property name of leases description sq metres refurbished

Other major investment properties in the portfolio (continued)

Key: Region CIT=London City, EA=East Anglia, EIR=Republic of Ireland, EM=East Midlands, GL=Greater London, N=North, NI=Northern Ireland, NW=North West, SCO=Scotland, SE=South East, SW=South West, WAL=Wales, WE=London West End,
WM=West Midlands, Y&H=Yorkshire & Humberside.



28

Joint Ventures Review
JO

IN
T

 V
E

N
T

U
R

E
S

 R
E

V
IE

W
TH

E
 B

R
IT

IS
H

 L
A

N
D

 C
O

M
PA

N
Y

 P
LC

Introduction

British Land has 15 active joint ventures involving retail, City offices, leisure, residential

and development properties. Some 17% of British Land’s portfolio is accounted for by

its £1.5 billion share of the properties held by the joint ventures. 

The net investment in joint ventures was £712.7 million at the year end.

While the underlying rationales for our joint ventures vary, encompassing both

investment and development together with venture-specific finance, they share a

simple common framework. They:

– are controlled on a 50:50 basis and combine skills with our partners,

– are able to raise finance on the strength of their own balance sheets with 

minimal or no support from either partner, thus enhancing the gearing benefit 

with negligible risk,

– achieve high return on capital from very low initial investments,

– provide access to desirable properties which were not on the market, through 

the outsourcing of specific property portfolios to the joint ventures by our partners.

This enables an effective diversification of the British Land portfolio at low risk,

– enable British Land to earn fees from the provision of services,

– have a clear exit strategy.

The key joint ventures events during the year are:

– in September 2000, a joint venture was established with WestLB, WestImmo and

Provinzial to acquire four British Land City of London properties,

– in December 2000, British Land acquired a 50% interest in London and Henley

Holdings Limited, owning a residential portfolio,

– in January 2001, British Land formed a joint venture with Gazeley Properties Limited

to purchase and develop two distribution and industrial sites.

Existing joint ventures have continued to rationalise and upgrade their investment

portfolios through acquisitions, disposals and redevelopment of assets.

Summary of British Land’s share in joint ventures

2001 2000 Change Change

£m £m £m %

Profit and loss account

Gross rental income 84.8 75.4 9.4 12.5

Operating profit 75.8 68.9 6.9 10.0

Disposal of fixed assets 3.7 2.9 0.8 27.6

Net interest – external (45.7) (33.7) (12.0) (35.6)

Net interest – shareholders (16.0) (15.3) (0.7) (4.6)

Profits before tax 17.8 22.8 (5.0) (21.9)

Balance Sheet

Gross assets 1,579.9 1,219.3 360.6 29.6

Gross liabilities (867.2) (648.5) (218.7) (33.7)

Net investment 712.7 570.8 141.9 24.9

Number of joint ventures 15 12

A company profile for each of our investment joint ventures is set out on pages 29 to 34.

British Land also has four joint ventures for sharing the skills, risks and rewards of

carrying out specific development projects with our partners. These joint ventures are

discussed within the Development Programme section, on pages 35 and 36.

Summary financial statements for the joint ventures appear on pages 66 to 68.
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The principal properties owned are;

Property use type Region Property name Area in sq m

Office CIT London EC3, 133 Houndsditch 19,200
SE Reading, Microsoft Campus 21,500

Office and retail WE London W1, 251-256 Tottenham Court Road 3,200
NW Liverpool, 58-72 Church Street 5,500

Retail GL Kingston-Upon-Thames, 51-52 Clarence Street 1,300
WE London W1, 187-195 Oxford Street 2,800
N Newcastle-Upon-Tyne, 72-76 Northumberland Street 3,100
N Newcastle-Upon-Tyne, 78-92 Northumberland Street 8,400
NW Manchester, 42-46 Market Street 1,500
SCO Edinburgh, 60 Princes Street 2,200
SCO Glasgow, 43-55 Argyle Street 4,200
SCO Glasgow, 78-90 Buchanan Street 2,700
SE Southampton, 51-55 Above Bar Street 1,200
SW Swindon, 10-17 Regent Street 3,500

Retail warehouse EA Cambridge, The Beehive Centre 26,100
NI Belfast, Connswater Retail Park 11,400
NI Coleraine, Riverside Retail Park 6,500
SE Dagenham, Whalebone Lane South 4,600
SW Bath, Weston Lock Retail Park 2,300
WAL Cardiff, Wenvoe Retail Park 3,900
WM Brimingham, Castle Vale Retail Park 17,900
WM West Bromwich, Great Bridge Retail Park 3,200
Y&H Leeds, Westside Retail Park 10,600
Y&H Wakefield, Westgate Retail Park 19,400

Shopping centre NI Belfast, Connswater Shopping Centre 16,800
SCO Aberdeen, St Nicholas Centre 7,200

Supermarket EM Lincoln, Tesco 5,500
GL London SE14, New Cross Gate, Sainsburys 8,450

BL Universal PLC

JV Partner: The Great Universal Stores P.L.C

Date Established: February 1997

Current Portfolio: 253 mixed retail properties with a value of £997.3 million

Gross rental Operating Gross Gross Net BL’s share Net debt/
income profits assets liabilities investment investment properties

£m £m £m £m £m £m %

63.9 55.1 1,050.1 (552.2) 497.9 250.5 43.4

BL Universal initially acquired 982 properties from the GUS group in February 1997.

Since then the joint venture has repositioned its portfolio, which currently stands at 

253 retail properties, mainly retail warehouse parks, prime high street shops, shopping

centres and superstores. In total, the joint venture has profitably sold around 730

properties and reinvested the proceeds primarily in retail parks. More recently sales

have repaid debt and returned cash to the partners.

The core portfolio includes: a 50% interest in the Microsoft Campus at Thames

Valley Park; The Beehive Centre, Cambridge; and retail parks in Castle Vale,

Birmingham; Westgate Retail Park, Wakefield; and Westside Retail Park, Leeds. It also

contains a number of large prime high street shops in major cities such as London,

Glasgow, Manchester, Leeds, Liverpool and Newcastle.

Activity in the year

During the year, the joint venture completed the acquisition of a Sainsbury’s superstore

with petrol filling station at New Cross, London for £21 million and has progressed with

the development of Castle Vale Retail Park, Birmingham. The joint venture has disposed

of 53 properties during the year.

In February 2001, the joint venture agreed to dispose of a portfolio of 81 high street

shops for £113 million, which is scheduled for completion later this year.  

Financing

At 31 March 2001, the joint venture was financed by £300 million publicly listed

debentures, a £125.6 million unsecured revolving bank loan and a £45.0 million secured

bank loan.

Investment joint ventures

Key: Region CIT=London City, EA=East Anglia, EIR=Republic of Ireland, EM=East Midlands, GL=Greater London, N=North, NI=Northern Ireland, NW=North West, SCO=Scotland, SE=South East, SW=South West, WAL=Wales, WE=London West End,
WM=West Midlands, Y&H=Yorkshire & Humberside.



Tesco plc

British Land has two joint ventures and a partnership with Tesco plc, which together 

own £655.3 million of retail properties, comprising 13 superstores, 4 retail parks,

5 shopping centres and 2 distribution centres and a high street store, all of which 

are anchored by Tesco Stores.   

BLT Properties Limited

JV Partner: Tesco plc

Date Established: November 1996

Current Portfolio: 13 retail properties with a value of £219.4 million

Gross rental Operating Gross Gross Net BL’s share Net debt/
income profits assets liabilities investment investment properties

£m £m £m £m £m £m %

14.3 14.0 230.3 (148.3) 82.0 41.0 56.4

This joint venture owns: 2 retail parks at Harlech and Plymouth; 2 distribution centres in

Southampton; a high street store and 8 Tesco Superstores.

Activity in the year

During the year, an extension of 28,054 sq ft has been completed at the Ashford

Superstore and the joint venture has sold the property at Wrexham to Tesco and

purchased from Tesco a Superstore at Formby.

Financing

The joint venture is financed by a £134.5 million secured bank loan. Recourse on the bank

loan to each shareholder is limited to £12 million.

The properties owned are;

Property use type Region Property name Area in sq m

Distribution SE Southampton, Nursling, Tesco Distribution Centre 29,700
SE Southampton, Nursling, Christian Salvesen 

Distribution Centre 7,000
Retail warehouse SW Plymouth, Marsh Mills Retail Park 10,400

WAL Newport, Harlech Retail Park 12,600
Supermarket EM Nottingham,Bulwell, Tesco 4,800

GL Feltham, Tesco 5,800
NW Formby, Tesco 5,050
SE Ashford, Tesco 4,400
SE Southend-on-Sea, Tesco Metro 3,100
SW Barnstaple, Tesco 6,400
SW Bristol, Brislington, Tesco 8,400
SW Newton Abbot, Tesco 6,600
WAL Pontypridd, Tesco 7,100

The Tesco British Land Property Partnership

Partner: Tesco plc

Date Established: February 1998

Current Portfolio: 3 shopping centres with a value of £118.0 million

Gross rental Operating Gross Gross Net BL’s share Net debt/
income profits assets liabilities investment investment properties

£m £m £m £m £m £m %

8.2 7.7 126.4 (10.9) 115.5 57.8 0.0

The partnership with Tesco plc was established to acquire 12 retail properties from the

partners, and in November 1999 sold 9 properties to a newly formed joint venture

company, Tesco BL Holdings Limited. The Partnership retains 3 shopping centres at

Leicester, Northampton and Lisburn.

Activity in the year

An extension of 86,490 sq ft to Beaumont Leys Shopping Centre, Leicester has begun 

and will be completed later this year, including a 25,660 sq ft extension to the Tesco

Supermarket.  Approximately 94% of the extension has already been let.  At the Weston

Favell Shopping Centre, Northampton, a petrol filling station has been built and let to Tesco.

Financing

The Partnership is funded by the partners’ contributions.

The properties owned are;

Property use type Region Property name Area in sq m

Shopping Centre EM Leicester, Beaumont Leys Shopping Centre 21,500
EM Northampton, Weston Favell Shopping Centre 21,700
NI Lisburn, Bow Street Mall 10,300
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Investment joint ventures (continued)

Key: Region CIT=London City, EA=East Anglia, EIR=Republic of Ireland, EM=East Midlands, GL=Greater London, N=North, NI=Northern Ireland, NW=North West, SCO=Scotland, SE=South East, SW=South West, WAL=Wales, WE=London West End,
WM=West Midlands, Y&H=Yorkshire & Humberside.
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Tesco BL Holdings Limited

JV Partner: Tesco plc

Date Established: November 1999

Current Portfolio: 9 retail properties with a value of £317.9 million

Gross rental Operating Gross Gross Net BL’s share Net debt/
income profits assets liabilities investment investment properties

£m £m £m £m £m £m %

19.9 19.1 322.5 (217.6) 104.9 52.5 64.6

This joint venture was established to acquire 9 properties from The Tesco British Land

Property Partnership comprising: 5 Tesco Superstores; 2 retail parks at Milton Keynes

and Bury; a district shopping centre at Lisnagelvin, Londonderry; together with

Serpentine Green, a major out of town shopping centre at Peterborough.

Activity in the year

The parade of retail units at Milton Keynes has been profitably reconfigured, extended

and re-let. A 56,127 sq ft extension of the Tesco Supermarket at Milton Keynes has

been completed.

During the year, the remaining retail units at the Serpentine Green Shopping Centre

have been successfully let to GAP, Shoe City and WH Smiths.

Financing

The joint venture has an unsecured loan of £210 million, without recourse to the

shareholders. 

The properties owned are;

Property use type Region Property name Area in sq m

Retail Warehouse NW Bury, Woodfields Retail Park 13,400
SE Milton Keynes, The Kingston Centre 15,500

Shopping Centre EA Peterborough, Serpentine Green 27,900
NI Londonderry, Lisnagelvin Shopping Centre 8,800

Supermarket GL London NW10, Neasden, Tesco 10,100
GL London E3, Bromley by Bow, Tesco 6,600
SE Southampton, Bursledon, Tesco 9,800
SE Maidstone, Grove Green, Tesco 4,600
SW Ferndown, Tesco 7,800

BL West

JV Partners: WestLB, WestImmo and Provinzial

Date Established: September 2000

Current Portfolio: 4 city offices with a value of £361.0 million

Gross rental Operating Gross Gross Net BL’s share Net debt/
income* profits* assets liabilities investment investment properties

£m £m £m £m £m £m %

6.3 5.7 378.8 (274.9) 103.9 51.9 68.9

* For the period from September 2000 to December 2000.

In September 2000, British Land sold 4 City offices to a new joint venture with WestLB,

WestImmo and Provinzial for a total consideration of £357.5 million. British Land retains

a 50% interest in the venture and received £307.5 million in cash.

The properties comprise: three office buildings developed in 1992; 1 Fleet Place,

Ludgate EC4, 10 Fleet Place, Ludgate EC4, 100 New Bridge Street, Ludgate EC4; and

Watling House, 33 Cannon Street EC4, an office building constructed in 1998.

Activity in the year

Since September 2000, the joint venture has completed 4 rent reviews, resulting in an

increase of £0.6 million per annum to the rents passing.  

Financing

WestLB provided an underwritten loan to the joint venture in the amount of £265

million, and has successfully completed the syndication of the loan.  

The properties owned are;

Property use type Region Property name Area in sq m

Offices CIT London EC4, Cannon Street, Watling House 8,000
CIT London EC4, 1 Fleet Place 15,700
CIT London EC4, 10 Fleet Place 17,000
CIT London EC4, 100 New Bridge Street 15,500

Investment joint ventures (continued)

Key: Region CIT=London City, EA=East Anglia, EIR=Republic of Ireland, EM=East Midlands, GL=Greater London, N=North, NI=Northern Ireland, NW=North West, SCO=Scotland, SE=South East, SW=South West, WAL=Wales, WE=London West End,
WM=West Midlands, Y&H=Yorkshire & Humberside.



The Public House Company Limited

JV Partner: Scottish & Newcastle plc

Date Established: April 1995

Current Portfolio: 280 public houses with a value of £230.5 million

Gross rental Operating Gross Gross Net BL’s share Net debt/
income profits assets liabilities investment investment properties

£m £m £m £m £m £m %

19.2 18.6 253.0 (144.3) 108.7 54.4 49.2

This joint venture with Scottish & Newcastle plc was established to acquire a portfolio 

of 306 public houses leased to its subsidiary.

At 31 March 2001 the joint venture owned 280 public houses, totalling

approximately 560,000 sq ft of trading area, which are predominately freehold and

located in the South of England.

Activity in the year

The joint venture has rationalised its portfolio through sales of 30 public houses to

third parties and 27 public houses back to Scottish & Newcastle. Also, since the year

end the joint venture has agreed to sell a further 152 public houses back to Scottish &

Newcastle, reducing the portfolio to around 128 properties. The funds from this sale 

will be reinvested partly in new public houses and used to repay debt.

During the year, the joint venture has completed 82 rent reviews with a net

increase to rental income of £0.6 million per annum.

Financing

At last year end, the joint venture was financed by an unsecured £164 million amortising

bank loan, which following disposals has since been reduced to £135.6 million. Recourse

on this loan to each shareholder is limited to £16 million. 

BL Fraser Limited

JV Partner: House of Fraser PLC

Date Established: July 1999

Current Portfolio: 16 department stores with a value of £201.2 million

Gross rental Operating Gross Gross Net BL’s share Net debt/
income profits assets liabilities investment investment properties

£m £m £m £m £m £m %

12.9 12.4 208.8 (149.4) 59.4 29.7 67.2

This joint venture was established to acquire and lease back 15 of House of Fraser’s

freehold and long leasehold department stores, comprising some 1.9 million sq ft in

high street locations, mostly in major provincial towns and cities.  

Activity in the year

During the year, the joint venture acquired a department store in Bristol (284,000 sq ft)

for £15.6 million.  House of Fraser completed a significant redevelopment and

extension of the Guildford store to which the joint venture contributed £6.2 million in

respect of increased area and rental income.

Financing

The secured bank loan was increased during the year by further drawings for Bristol

and Guildford to £139.75 million. The bank loan is without recourse to shareholders. 

The properties owned are;

Property use type Region Property name Area in sq m

Retail EM Lincoln, 226-231 High Street 7,600
N Darlington, Blackwellgate 12,700
N Middlesbrough, 37 Linthorpe Road 12,000
NW Carlisle, 26-40 English Street 8,900
SCO Perth, 116-120 High Street 5,500
SE Camberley, Park Street & Princess Way 11,600
SE Chichester, West Street & Tower Street 6,500
SE Guildford, 105-113 High Street 15,400
SW Bristol, Horsefair 26,400
SW Plymouth, 40-46 Royal Parade 17,100
WAL Cardiff, St Mary's Street & Trinity Street 26,100
WM Leamington Spa, 78-86 The Parade 9,300
Y&H Doncaster, 13-14 Baxtergate 4,800
Y&H Grimsby, Victoria Street West 8,500
Y&H Hull, 1 Paragon Square 17,500
Y&H Leeds, 138-142 Briggate 10,700
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Investment joint ventures (continued)

Key: Region CIT=London City, EA=East Anglia, EIR=Republic of Ireland, EM=East Midlands, GL=Greater London, N=North, NI=Northern Ireland, NW=North West, SCO=Scotland, SE=South East, SW=South West, WAL=Wales, WE=London West End,
WM=West Midlands, Y&H=Yorkshire & Humberside.
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London and Henley Holdings Limited

JV Partner: Security Capital European Realty

Date Established: December 2000

Current Portfolio: 69 blocks of flats with a value of £170.6 million

Gross rental Operating Gross Gross Net BL’s share Net debt/
income* profits* assets liabilities investment investment properties

£m £m £m £m £m £m %

2.6 1.8 174.4 (120.4) 54.0 27.0 65.4

* For the period from December 2000 to March 2001 (unaudited).

In December 2000, The British Land Company PLC acquired a 50% interest in London

and Henley Holdings Limited, for approximately £18 million with its owner, Security

Capital European Realty retaining the other 50%.

London & Henley owns a portfolio of 69 blocks of flats (constituting approximately

750 units), which are concentrated within the Greater London area, of which 70% are

located in Central London.

The principal assets include: Marble Arch Apartments, Harrowby Street; St Marks

Apartments, City Road; and Weddel House, West Smithfield.

Activity in the year

The joint venture intends to retain the portfolio as an investment, and in the period 

to March 2001, the residential portfolio showed a strong uplift in value of 12% from 

£152 million to £171 million.

Financing

The joint venture was financed mainly by a bank loan of £114.5 million. 

BL Rank Properties Limited

JV Partner: The Rank Group Plc

Date Established: August 1997

Current Portfolio: 18 leisure properties with a value of £150.3 million

Gross rental Operating Gross Gross Net BL’s share Net debt/
income profits assets liabilities investment investment properties

£m £m £m £m £m £m %

11.9 10.0 155.0 (108.6) 46.4 23.2 65.9

The joint venture initially acquired 22 leisure properties, principally let to Rank, and now

retains 18 of those properties comprising 10 bingo clubs, 1 leisure park, 2 cinemas and

5 multi-leisure centres.

Activity in the year

The joint venture has profitably sold a multi-leisure park at Bromborough and a bingo

unit at Swansea during the year.  Beckton was also sold after obtaining planning

consent for change of use from a Bingo unit to non-food retail warehousing. 

Financing

Proceeds from these disposals have been applied in repaying the unsecured bank

loan, which has now been reduced to £93.8 million. Recourse on this loan to each

shareholder is limited to £5 million.

The properties owned are;

Property use type Region Property name Area in sq m

Leisure EM Leicester, Leicester Leisure Park 8,100
EM Lincoln, Tritton Trading Estate 1,400
GL London SW18, Wandsworth, Garrett Lane 4,000
N Hartlepool, The Lanyard 2,700
NW Blackpool, Talbot Road 3,800
NW Liverpool, Knotty Ash 2,700
NW Manchester, Imperial Trading Estate 3,200
SCO Glasgow, The Forge 4,600
SCO Glasgow, Drumchapel, Axis West 3,000
SCO Glasgow, The Quay 11,800
SE Southampton, Leisure World 14,100
SE Southend-on-Sea, Victoria Circus 3,600
SW Bristol, Barrow Court 3.100
WM Birmingham, Stockfield Road 3.600
WM Stoke-on-Trent, Stoke Festival Park 7,700
WM Telford, Southwater Square 4,900
Y&H Kingston-upon-Hull, Clough Road 3.500
Y&H Huddersfield, Folly Hall 8,000

Investment joint ventures (continued)

Key: Region CIT=London City, EA=East Anglia, EIR=Republic of Ireland, EM=East Midlands, GL=Greater London, N=North, NI=Northern Ireland, NW=North West, SCO=Scotland, SE=South East, SW=South West, WAL=Wales, WE=London West End,
WM=West Midlands, Y&H=Yorkshire & Humberside.



Peacocks Centre Partnership

This 50:50 partnership with Alecta (formerly SPP Group), was established in June 1998

to acquire The Peacocks Centre, Woking. The Peacocks Centre provides 350,000 sq ft 

of retail space in a modern shopping centre with an arts and entertainment complex.

Great Eastern Hotel

This joint venture with Conran Holdings Limited and Wyndham International retains a

125 year head lease interest in the recently redeveloped 267 bedroom hotel complex

situated at Broadgate.

Investment joint ventures (continued)

1 The Museum has a vast costume collection, from a leather bikini
worn by a Roman acrobat to the latest designer wear. London's
long-standing importance in the fashion and clothing industries 
is given particular recognition.

1
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Overview

Development activity has continued apace during the

year. Responsibilities within the development team 

have been reallocated with Mark Wright becoming 

Head of London Developments, Nigel Webb, Head of

Provincial Developments and Jonathan Hallam, Head 

of Development Administration.

At 31 March 2001 the development programme 

(including joint ventures) represented development 

costs of approximately £1.64 billion and total prospective 

ERV of £175 million of which the Group’s shares are

approximately £1.2 billion and £132 million respectively. 

Of this, some 148,000 sq m in eight projects is currently

under construction representing committed costs of £305

million. The Group’s share of ERV attributable to these

projects is approximately £25.6 million per annum.

The remaining programme comprising some 596,000 

sq m is developable over a period of 5 to 7 years. 

Of this approximately 282,000 sq m already has 

planning permission.

Of the projects included in the development programme 

as at 31 March 2000, 8 buildings (including 6 office 

units at Blythe Valley Park and a unit for Asda at

Dumbarton) comprising 20,000 sq m in total have 

been completed, representing construction costs of 

some £31.5 million and total ERV of £3.4 million. 

These buildings are no longer included within the

development programme figures. 

Highlights

During the year the following significant progress has

been achieved:

Regent’s Place, London NW1

Construction on new headquarters for Abbey National plc

at 2 & 3 Triton Square is progressing well towards

completion in the Summer of 2001.

Construction of 350 Euston Road also continues apace

towards completion in September 2001. Marketing of this

building has developed significant letting interest.

201 Bishopsgate, Broadgate, London EC2 
( joint arrangement with Railtrack)

Detailed planning permission was obtained for a landmark

building providing some 60,500 sq m net of offices. 

Pre-letting discussions with a number of interested

parties are being actively pursued. 

Plantation Place, London EC3

Archaeology was completed and a new detailed planning

permission was obtained in February 2001 for two connected

buildings which together provide 64,000 sq m net of offices.

Marketing activity is generating positive tenant interest.

Hamilton House, Broadgate, London EC2

Design work has been undertaken for 13,000 sq m net of

offices. A planning application is currently being submitted.

The site fronting Appold Street and formerly occupied by

Railtrack, adjoins Exchange Square, Broadgate.

The Development Programme

1 Regent’s Place
1



Blythe Valley Park, Solihull 
( joint venture with ProLogis Developments)

Development of this 97,000 sq m business park on a 

69 hectare site with direct access from the M42 motorway

continues to progress well, with a further 18,000 sq m

currently under construction. Occupiers include Oracle

Corporation, Centrica, Vodafone, Virgin Active, Ove Arup

and Regus.

Cherrywood, Dublin (joint venture with Dunloe Ewart Plc)

This masterplanned mixed use development on a site 

of 170 hectares is situated south of the airport and 

8 miles south of Dublin, at Loughlinstown, between the

main Dublin-Rosslare Road and the new South East

motorway. The development incorporates science and

technology parks totalling 102,000 sq m of accommodation

with scope for significant further expansion, a golf course

and a District Centre of mixed uses including retail,

offices, residential, hotel and leisure. The first phase 

of development on the Science and Technology Park of

10,950 sq m in two buildings has been completed and

let to Lucent Technologies and Dell Corporation

respectively. A second phase of 11,560 sq m in three

buildings is under construction.

Centre West, East Kilbride

Construction of this 24,600 sq m Shopping Centre

commenced in March 2001. The Centre is to be

anchored by a 10,200 sq m Debenhams department

store. The Centre will be completed to allow trading to

commence for Easter 2003. The development is being

undertaken in partnership with Stannifer Developments

and South Lanarkshire Council.

Heathrow Gateway

The Group is developing a 20,440 sq m distribution 

unit pre-let to Royal Mail. A further unit of 11,450 sq m 

is also under construction. Consent exists for a further

phase of 9,000 sq m.

BL Gazeley

The Company’s joint venture with Gazeley Properties,

owns sites at Thatcham, Berkshire and Redditch,

Worcestershire totalling 32 hectares and with potential 

for up to 140,000 sq m of industrial and distribution

space. The joint venture has successfully completed 

a pre-let first phase at its Redditch site of 11,150 sq m.

Other Development Projects

The Company continues to develop and add value to 

its retail park portfolio. A 5,600 sq m foodstore pre-let 

to Asda Stores PLC has been completed at St James’s

Retail Park, Dumbarton. A further foodstore of 6,800 sq m

pre-let to Asda is currently being developed at BL

Universal’s Beehive Centre, Cambridge.

Recently Acquired Projects
51 Lime Street, London EC3 
(joint arrangement with Lloyds of London and Stanhope)

The company joined with Stanhope for a successful bid

to partner Lloyds in the re-development of the old

underwriting centre built in 1958. The site occupies an

area of 5,250 sq m bounded by Lime Street, Fenchurch

Avenue and Billiter Street. The process of design

development for the preparation of a planning

application is currently underway. 

Caroone House, Farringdon Street, London EC4

The Group acquired this 7,000 sq m building to add to

the development portfolio. The purchase was completed

in April 2001. The site adjoins Fleet Place, part of the

Ludgate development.
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2 201 Bishopsgate, Broadgate
2
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Valuation Certificate

The Directors

The British Land Company PLC

10 Cornwall Terrace, Regent’s Park, London NW1 4QP

Dear Sirs,

UK Portfolio Valuation March 2001

Values and Instructions

In accordance with your instructions we have carried out

a valuation of certain freehold, heritable, and leasehold

properties in the United Kingdom owned by The British

Land Company PLC or its wholly owned subsidiaries 

in order to advise as to the open market value for

balance sheet purposes of these property assets as 

at 31 March 2001.

We are of the opinion that the total of the open

market values of the properties listed on the attached

schedules and owned by the Company as at that date is

in the sum of:

£7,221,200,590

(Seven billion, two hundred and twenty one million,
two hundred thousand, five hundred and ninety
pounds)

The above figures represent the aggregate of the values

attributable to the individual properties, and should not be

regarded as a valuation of the portfolio as a whole 

in the context of a sale as a single lot. In the case of the

development property at 201 Bishopsgate we have as

instructed included half of its value, reflecting the nature 

of the agreement with Railtrack Plc.

Certain properties within the group are held on 999

year or similar length leases, some with the option to

purchase the freehold for £1. Others are held predominantly

on a freehold basis but include parts held on a long

leasehold basis at a peppercorn or nominal ground rent. 

In calculating the apportionments between tenure types

above, we have included these in the freehold category.

Short leasehold properties are classified as having less

than 50 years unexpired.

Major Valuation Issues

General

There have been a number of disposals at prices in

keeping with our previous valuations. Major purchases

have focused predominantly on developments where

there is scope for greater added value.

The Company’s holdings have therefore moved

again towards higher quality, larger lot sizes with scope for

adding meaningful value and, with the stronger covenant

of such occupiers, the ability to create value by more

innovative financing.

The general economic environment has remained

benign although, particularly in the period following the

valuation date, concerns about economic slowdown

emanating from the U.S. have become more prevalent.

The UK property investment market has remained broadly

stable, returns comfortably exceeding those achieved from

either gilts or equities.

In accordance with RICS “Red Book” guidance we

continue to report valuation figures calculated net of

stamp duty and the usual purchase costs. These amount

to a total of about £350 million, of which approximately

£167 million is in respect of stamp duty alone at

Broadgate and Meadowhall. In practice, as stamp rates

have risen such property assets are now more typically

transferred within a corporate structure.

We have also carried out a number of discounted

cash-flow appraisals. Our view is that an overall discount

rate of about 8.50% is appropriate, reflecting the required

return of an investor from such a portfolio. Individually

assessed rental growth rates and exit yields have been

applied to all investment properties within the portfolio.

The results of this approach supports our traditional

investment approach. Whilst the results are dependent

upon the various parameters adopted, what is evident

from this exercise is the remarkable solidity and longevity

of the company’s income stream; even some seventeen

years into the cash-flow around 67% of rents remain 

well secured. 

City of London and Mid-Town

With continuing restricted supply the City of London

office rental market has finally begun to show steep rental

increases. Within the Broadgate complex itself rent reviews

with effective dates some three months prior to the valuation

date have been settled at figures in excess of £54 per sq ft.

This compares with our typical rental value as at the

previous valuation in September 2000 of £48.50 per sq ft.

By the valuation date, rents in excess of £60 per 

sq ft had been achieved and many of these relate to

properties which are inferior to Broadgate, in terms of

floor plate, day lighting, prominence and location. 

The Broadgate reviews already settled were in 

line with the best achieved elsewhere at that time. 

It is therefore logical that the external surveyors acting

on the more recent reviews, which remain outstanding 

at later effective dates, will be seeking to improve upon

these levels. We have, however, adopted more cautious

estimates in our valuation.
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Long Short
Freehold Leasehold Leasehold

A Held as investments 6,564,843,090 174,199,000 2,165,000

B Held for development 61,418,500 1,775,000

C Owner occupied 13,000,000

D In the course of development 403,800,000

Total value 7,030,061,590 188,974,000 2,165,000
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Whilst the majority of straightforward investment sales

within the City have continued to reflect the returns

sought by debt-financed purchases, there have been

some institutional purchases. More importantly we

consider that the scale of potential returns to be made

from the Broadgate Estate would generate substantial

interest from investors worldwide. Such returns would 

be enhanced by the more aggressive margins that could

be negotiated with debt providers, given the scale and

security of the underlying income stream. Aside from 

the profit from the in-built reversionary potential of some

£30 million per annum within the next 4 years, at present

rental values, there are numerous other opportunities.

They include re-negotiation of lease terms, taking back

space to refurbish and in the longer term prospects 

for substantially increasing the floor space across this 

30 acre site.

The West End of London

Although rentals for the upper end of the spectrum 

have stabilised, levels for more affordable space continue

to increase. 

It appears that the majority of tenants consider 

that rentals between 50% and 80% of prime levels to be

acceptable. This provides good prospects for Regent’s

Place, offering top quality accommodation in a prestigious

immediate environment yet, still offering substantial

discounts from peak rental levels. Other West End

holdings with scope for refurbishment or redevelopment

are also well placed to benefit from this.

Longer term, although there may be competition

from areas such as Paddington, we believe the more

diverse tenant base of the West End, combined with the

restricted supply of sizeable amounts of new Grade A

quality space, bode well for future rental and capital

performance. The desire to hold West End property 

has been amply demonstrated by the very aggressive

bidding which took place for the Berkeley Square 

Estate recently.

Shopping Centres, Retail and Retail Warehousing

Retailers in the UK are currently reappraising their

market as consumer preferences have polarised

between ‘value’ and ‘niche’ purchases. As less

responsive or well-managed retailers have failed to react

quickly enough there have been a number of casualties.

The effect of this has been twofold. Retail property

investors’ sentiment towards retail property investments

has been adversely affected. Secondly, the availability of

accommodation created by vacating retailers, for

example C&A, has allowed the more successful retailers

to expand without pressure on rentals.

As soon as retailers have completed this period 

of readjustment, a new group of more efficient traders

will continue to expand, resulting in the return of 

rental growth. 

Conversely, there is more encouraging activity in

the out of town sector where we consider the long term

growth prospects to be good. Investment demand for

parks or clusters where “active management" can be

more readily pursued, remains as strong as ever and

there has been an improvement in the market for solus

units, especially those which benefit from open A1

planning consents.

The number of shopping centre transactions 

has declined since our last valuation. However, levels 

of value have remained broadly constant. Again, the

majority of the activity has been at the more 

secondary level.

Leisure

Little has changed. A number of properties within the

Public House portfolio have been disposed in excess of

our previous valuation figures. The Great Eastern Hotel,

Broadgate has shown higher levels of trading than

previously anticipated following its start up period, with 

a corresponding improvement in capital value.

Department Stores

Latent value remains based upon the relatively low

capital prices per sq ft. Rents achieved amongst the

larger units at Meadowhall, for example, suggest there 

is scope for improvement in such rental values.

The House of Fraser Joint Venture offers relatively

generous reversionary yields based upon the guaranteed

minimum reversions which in due course may offer

profitable re-financing opportunities.

Supermarkets

There have been a number of encouraging investment

sales including an Asda in the West Midlands at a yield

below 63/4%. These reflect demand for long leases, good

covenant strength combined with scope for exploiting

the secure income and underlying trading potential of

the sites in a variety of ways. 

Provincial Offices

Yields have remained broadly static. Cities such as

Manchester still have essentially local occupiers,

although take up, for example, at Two Moorfields,

Liverpool, has been favourable. In the Western corridor,

after a period of rapid rental growth, there is now a

lessening in those technology, media and telecoms

occupiers’ growth rates. This will lead to rents stabilising

for the time being.

Industrial

Activity, and indeed holdings, are generally concentrated

in Greater London. Long term real rental growth is most

sustainable here, with a restricted land supply coupled

with the Government’s preference in planning terms for

redevelopment of “brown field" sites. Elsewhere, real

growth properties must be constrained by the potential

for new supply, although larger distribution units close to

major transport links still find favour with institutional

buyers, offering sound long term covenant income

combined with possible rental movement, or favourable

yield shift in the future.
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Basis of valuation

The properties have been valued on an open market

basis with the exception of the owner occupied property

at Cornwall Terrace, which has been valued on an

existing use basis. Open market value is an opinion of

the best price at which the sale of an interest in the

property would have been completed unconditionally for

cash consideration on the date of valuation, assuming:

(a) a willing seller;

(b) that, prior to the date of valuation, there had been a

reasonable period (having regard to the nature of the

property and the state of the market) for the proper

marketing of the interest, for the agreement of the

price and terms, and for the completion of the sale;

(c) that the state of the market, level of values and other

circumstances were, on any earlier assumed date 

of exchange of contracts, the same as on the date 

of valuation; 

(d) that no account is taken of any additional bid by a

prospective purchaser with a special interest; and

(e) that both parties to the transaction had acted

knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion.

We would draw your attention to paragraph (b) of

the above definition of open market value. Given market

conditions as at the valuation date, a period of three 

to six months can be considered a reasonable time in

which to effect a sale of any individual property. Our

valuation does, however, assume that any sale would 

be as part of an orderly disposal of such assets and 

that the market would not be adversely affected by an

attempt to dispose of a significant holding over a 

short period. 

Existing use value means an opinion of the 

best price at which the sale of an interest in property

would have been completed unconditionally for cash

consideration on the date of valuation, assuming:

(a) a willing seller;

(b) that, prior to the date of valuation, there had been a

reasonable period (having regard to the nature of the

property and the state of the market) for the proper

marketing of the interest, for the agreement of the

price and terms and for the completion of the sale;

(c) that the state of the market, level of values and other

circumstances were, on any earlier assumed date 

of exchange of contracts, the same as on the date 

of valuation;

(d) that no account is taken of any additional bid by 

a prospective purchaser with a special interest;

(e) that both parties to the transaction had acted

knowledgeably, prudently, and without compulsion;

(f) the property can be used for the foreseeable future

only for the existing use; and

(g) that vacant possession is provided on completion 

of the sale of all parts of the property occupied by 

the business.

Assumptions and Disclaimers

In our valuation of those classified as completed

properties in the portfolio, no account has been taken 

of any retentions, nor do our valuations make allowance

for any outstanding development costs, fees, or other

expenditure for which the company may be liable. 

Our valuation of the properties in the course of

development reflects the stage reached in construction

and the costs already incurred at the date of valuation,

whilst having regard to the contractual liabilities of the

parties involved in the development and any cost

estimates which have been prepared by your

professional advisers and supplied to us.

This certificate and valuation and the detailed

reports attached have been prepared in accordance with

the current edition of the Appraisal and Valuation Manual

(The Red Book) issued by The Royal Institution of

Chartered Surveyors.

Surveys and enquiries upon which all of our

valuations are based are carried out by general practice

surveyors making appropriate investigations having

regard to the purpose of the valuation. The valuers

responsible for the work are qualified asset valuers as

defined in the new Red Book. 

Whilst we have not examined the title documents

themselves, we have in all but a very few cases seen

your solicitors’ reports on title and, we have therefore,

assumed that, unless stated otherwise, the interests are

not subject to any onerous restrictions, to the payment 

of any unusual outgoings or to any charges, or rights 

of way or easements, other than those to which we 

have referred. We have assumed that any outstanding

requirements of the various repairing covenants will be met.

Although we reflect our general understanding of 

a tenant's status in our valuation, we make no enquiries

about the financial status of tenants, and rely upon you

to advise us if tenants are in default of rental payments,

or where there appear grounds for concern. We assume

that appropriate enquiries were made when leases were

originally exchanged, or when consent was granted to

tenants to assign or underlet. 

Details of the nature and extent of the properties,

the tenure and tenancies, permitted uses and related

matters, have been supplied by you. Where possible 

this information has been confirmed during our

inspection. We have assumed that these details are

accurate and that the interests are in all respects good

and marketable. 

Properties and accommodation occupied by the

company or subject to inter-company leases have been

valued assuming vacant possession.

We have made oral enquiries of the local planning

and highway authorities and the information obtained is

assumed to be correct. We have been informed that

there are no local authority planning or highway

V
A

LU
A

T
IO

N
 C

E
R

T
IF

IC
A

T
E

TH
E

 B
R

ITIS
H

 LA
N

D
 C

O
M

PA
N

Y
 P

LC



40

V
A

LU
A

T
IO

N
 C

E
R

T
IF

IC
A

T
E

TH
E

 B
R

IT
IS

H
 L

A
N

D
 C

O
M

PA
N

Y
 P

LC

proposals that might involve the use of compulsory

purchase powers or otherwise directly affect the

properties. No formal searches have been instigated. 

The properties included in this report were

inspected between January and March 2001, and were

measured in accordance with The Royal Institution of

Chartered Surveyors Code of Measuring Practice. The

floor areas given are derived from measurements taken

on site or have been scaled from the drawings supplied

and checked by sample measurements on site. 

As we were not instructed to carry out structural

surveys or to test any of the service installations, our

valuations reflect only the general condition of the

properties evident from our inspections and any defects

of which we have been made aware as detailed in the

individual reports. We assume that no materials have

been used in the construction of the buildings which are

deleterious, hazardous or likely to give rise to structural

defects. We also assume that all relevant statutory

requirements have been complied with.

We were not instructed to carry out investigations

into ground conditions, and unless otherwise indicated in

the individual reports, our valuations assume that the

sites are physically capable of development, or

redevelopment, when appropriate, and that no special or

unusual costs will be incurred in providing foundations

and infrastructure.

You have not instructed us to carry out any

investigation into pollution hazards which might affect

the properties and, unless otherwise indicated, our

valuations assume that the properties are not adversely

affected by any form of pollution.

Our valuations assume that any building services

which incorporate electronic devices necessary for their

proper functioning, and the software which operates such

devices, are Millennium compliant, or can be rendered so

compliant at no significant cost. You have informed us

that no such problems were encountered in the period

immediately following the new Millennium.

We include in our valuations those items of plant

and machinery normally considered to be part of the

building service installations and which would pass with

the property on a sale or letting. We exclude all items of

process plant and machinery and equipment, together

with their special foundations and supports, furniture and

furnishings, vehicles, stock and loose tools, and tenants’

fixtures and fittings.

In arriving at our valuations, no allowance has been

made for the costs of realisation, any liability for tax

which might arise in the event of disposal or deemed

disposal or for the existence of any mortgages or similar

financial encumbrances over the properties. Our

valuations are exclusive of any VAT.

This valuation is provided for the stated purposes

and is for the use only of those to whom it is addressed.

No responsibility is accepted to any other party.

No part of this certificate may be reproduced, or

reference made to it, without our prior written approval.

Furthermore, no reference may be made to the certificate

in any other publication without our written approval. 

Yours faithfully

Weatherall Green & Smith

Norfolk House,

31 St James’s Square,

London SW1Y 4JR.

24 May 2001 1 1 Most people give their old clothes to the 

jumble sale or charity shop, but some of 

the Queen’s cast-offs go to the Museum. 

The curator’s cotton gloves keep body acids

away from vulnerable materials.





The British Land Company PLC

● John Ritblat F.R.I.C.S. CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

John Ritblat became Managing Director of Union Property
Holdings (London) Ltd in August, 1969, and became 
Chairman and Managing Director of The British Land Company
in 1971 following its merger with Union. He is a founding
Chairman of Colliers Conrad Ritblat Erdman. He is Chairman 
and Chief Executive of The British Land Corporation Limited. 
Aged 65 years.

* † ● Derek A. Higgs B.A., F.C.A. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN

Derek Higgs joined The British Land Company as a non-executive
Director in July 2000, and became Deputy Chairman in March
2001. He is Senior Adviser in the UK to UBS Warburg and
Chairman of Business in the Environment, Partnerships UK plc
and the IPD Index Consultative Group. His other appointments
include membership of the Financial Reporting Council of the UK
and non-executive directorships of Egg plc, Jones Lang LaSalle
Inc., London Regional Transport and Allied Irish Banks, p.l.c. 
Aged 57 years.

Cyril Metliss F.C.A.

Cyril Metliss was appointed an executive Director of 
The British Land Company in July, 1971 after gaining wide
experience in manufacturing, financial services and property
development. He was a senior partner in Stoy Hayward & Co.,
chartered accountants, before becoming a Director of the
Company. He is Executive Vice-Chairman of The British Land
Corporation Limited and Chairman of British Land Properties
Limited. Aged 77 years.

● John H. Weston Smith M.A., F.C.I.S.

John Weston Smith joined The British Land Company 
as Secretary in July, 1971 from N. M. Rothschild & Sons Limited
and was appointed an executive Director in January, 1973.
Previously he was Joint General Manager of the Abbey National
Building Society. He is Managing Director of The British Land
Corporation Limited and Chairman of British Land Financing
Limited, British Land Developments Limited and Broadgate
Estates Limited. Aged 69 years.

Nicholas Ritblat M.A.

Nicholas Ritblat joined The British Land Company in September,
1987 and was appointed an executive Director in September,
1991. He previously worked for S.G. Warburg & Co. Ltd’s
corporate and international finance divisions. He is Deputy
Chairman of British Land Financing Limited. Aged 39 years.

* † ● Michael Cassidy B.A.,M.B.A.

Michael Cassidy was appointed a non-executive Director 
of The British Land Company in January, 1996. He is the senior
non-executive director. He is senior partner of Maxwell Batley,
Solicitors, specialising in commercial property. He was formerly
Chairman of the Policy and Resources Committee of the
Corporation of London. Aged 54 years.

Robert E. Bowden B.Sc., F.R.I.C.S.

Robert Bowden, a former senior partner of Conrad Ritblat & Co.,
joined The British Land Company in April, 1992 as head of
property investment and acquisitions. He was appointed an
executive Director in June, 1997. He is Deputy Chairman of British
Land Properties Limited. Aged 58 years.

* † ● Robert Swannell F.C.A.

Robert Swannell became a non-executive Director of The British
Land Company in August, 1999. He is Vice-Chairman of Schroder
Salomon Smith Barney. Aged 50 years.

* † ● The Lord Burns G.C.B. B.A. (Econ.)

Terry Burns became a non-executive Director of The British Land
Company in July 2000. He is Chairman of the National Lottery
Commission and of Glas Cymru Cyfyngedig. He is a non-executive
director and Chairman of the Audit Committee of Legal & General
Group plc and a non-executive director of Pearson plc. He was
Permanent Secretary of H.M. Treasury between 1991 and 1998. 
Aged 57 years.

Secretary
Anthony Braine L.L.B., F.C.I.S.

* Member of the Remuneration Committee † Member of the Audit Committee
● Member of the Nomination Committee

The British Land Corporation Limited

The principal management and operating company of the Group.
John Ritblat is Chairman and Chief Executive, Cyril Metliss is
Executive Vice-Chairman and John Weston Smith is Managing
Director. In addition the Board comprises the other executive
directors of The British Land Company PLC and the following:

Michael I. Gunston F.R.I.C.S., I.R.R.V. joined The British Land Company in March
1975 and is the Chief Surveyor. Aged 57 years.

Stuart Slack F.C.A. joined The British Land Company in August 1971. 
In 1992 he was appointed Group Treasurer. Aged 55 years.

John H. Iddiols B.Sc. (Est. Man.), F.R.I.C.S. joined The British Land Company
in November 1984 and is the Deputy Chief Surveyor. Aged 55 years.

Anthony Braine L.L.B., F.C.I.S. joined The British Land Company in October 1987
as Assistant Secretary. He was appointed Group Secretary in March 1995. 
Aged 44 years.

Lucinda M. Bell M.A., F.C.A. joined The British Land Company in December 1991.
She was appointed Head of Tax in April 2001. Aged 36 years.

Christopher M. J. Forshaw F.C.A. joined The British Land Company in
December 1994. His responsibilities include internal control compliance 
and assessing property acquisitions. Aged 51 years.

Peter C. Clarke F.C.I.S. joined The British Land Company in March 1989. 
He is a Head of Asset Management and his responsibilities include corporate
matters and securitisations. Aged 35 years.

Stephen G. Spooner B.Sc., F.R.I.C.S. joined The British Land Company 
in May 1988. He is an Estates Surveyor with additional responsibilities for 
E-commerce. Aged 43 years.

Naren G. Raichura F.C.C.A. joined The British Land Company in July 1975 
and is the Group Accountant. Aged 52 years.

Anthony W. Adams joined The British Land Company in June 1982 and 
is the Group Management Accountant. Aged 48 years.

Peter Earl B.Sc. joined The British Land Company in May 1989 and 
is Head of Information Technology. Aged 39 years.

Sarah M. Barzycki M.A. joined The British Land Company in April 1998 and 
her responsibilities include corporate banking and joint ventures. Aged 42 years.

Adrian P. Penfold B.A. (Hons.), M.R.T.P.I. joined The British Land Company 
in November 1996 and is Head of Planning and Environment. Aged 49 years.

Daniel Peltz B.A. (Hons.), joined The British Land Company in September 2000.
He is a Head of Asset Management and Managing Director of BL Universal PLC.
Aged 40 years.

Timothy A. Roberts B.Sc., M.R.I.C.S. joined The British Land Company 
in June 1997. He is a Head of Asset Management. Aged 36 years.

Nicholas K. Bates B.Sc., M.R.I.C.S. joined The British Land Company 
in January 1996 and is an Estates Surveyor. Aged 38 years.

Paul Burgess joined The British Land Company in November 1995 and 
is a Leasing Executive. Aged 44 years.

Steven J. Rickard B.Sc., M.R.I.C.S. joined The British Land Company 
in April 1990 and is an Estates Surveyor. Aged 40 years.

Nigel M. Webb B.Sc. (Hons.), M.R.I.C.S. joined The British Land Company 
in March 1992 and is Head of Provincial Developments. Aged 37 years.

Mark T. Wright B.Sc., M.R.I.C.S. joined The British Land Company 
in April 1987 and is Head of London Developments. Aged 39 years.

Jonathan Hallam L.L.B., M.B.A. joined The British Land Company 
in December 2000 and is Head of Development Administration. 
Aged 39 years.

Secretary
Anthony Braine L.L.B., F.C.I.S.
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1 With so much to see and absorb, even the keenest mind can
eventually reach saturation point. At the end of a long day,
a visitor gathers his thoughts.

2 A visit to the Museum makes a memorable day out for school
parties. To keep minds and fingers busy, different types and 
levels of activity are scheduled by the education department.

21





British Land Financing Limited

Responsible for the financing activities of the Group. 

John Weston Smith is Chairman and Nicholas Ritblat is Deputy

Chairman. In addition the Board comprises the other executive

directors of The British Land Company PLC and the following:

I. N. Geoffrey Selwyn B.Com. (Acc.), F.C.A., F.T.I.I. Aged 60 years.

Stuart Slack F.C.A.

Anthony Braine L.L.B., F.C.I.S.

Lucinda M. Bell M.A., F.C.A.

Christopher M. J. Forshaw F.C.A.

Peter C. Clarke F.C.I.S.

Naren G. Raichura F.C.C.A.

Anthony W. Adams

Peter Earl B.Sc.

Sarah M. Barzycki M.A.

Daniel M. Jones M.A.A.T., A.C.A. Aged 31 years.

Graham Lee B.Sc., F.C.A., A.T.I.I. Aged 51 years.

Jonathan C. Payne Aged 38 years.

Amanda J. Rushton B.Sc.(Hons.), A.C.A. Aged 27 years.

Patrick E. Hawkins B.A.(Hons.). Aged 33 years.

Secretary

Rebecca J. Scudamore B.A. (Hons.), A.C.I.S. Aged 28 years.

British Land Properties Limited

Responsible for the management of the property assets and

estates of the Group. Cyril Metliss is Chairman and Robert

Bowden is Deputy Chairman. In addition the Board comprises

the other executive directors of The British Land Company PLC

and the following:

Michael I. Gunston F.R.I.C.S., I.R.R.V. 

John H. Iddiols B.Sc.(Est. Man.), F.R.I.C.S.  

Peter C. Clarke F.C.I.S.

Stephen G. Spooner B.Sc., F.R.I.C.S.  

B. Desmond Morris B.Sc.(Hons.), F.R.I.C.S. Aged 47 years.

Steven J. Rickard B.Sc., M.R.I.C.S.

Bryan J. Lewis B.Sc.(Hons.), M.Phil., M.R.I.C.S. Aged 34 years.

Nicholas K. Bates B.Sc., M.R.I.C.S.

Timothy A. Roberts B.Sc., M.R.I.C.S.

Barry C. Winfield B.Sc. Eng., Aged 52 years.

Christopher G. Betts B.Sc.(Hons.), M.R.I.C.S. Aged 35 years.

Fiona J. Bowring B.Sc.(Hons.), M.R.I.C.S. Aged 30 years.

Daniel Peltz B.A. (Hons.)

Secretary

Rebecca J. Scudamore B.A. (Hons.), A.C.I.S. 

British Land Developments Limited

Responsible for the management of the development activities

of the Group. John Weston Smith is Chairman. In addition the

Board comprises the other executive directors of The British

Land Company PLC and the following:

Michael I. Gunston F.R.I.C.S., I.R.R.V. 

Adrian P. Penfold B.A.(Hons.), M.R.T.P.I.

Mark T. Wright B.Sc., M.R.I.C.S.

Nigel M. Webb B.Sc.(Hons.), M.R.I.C.S.

Paul Burgess 

John P. Hayman M.R.I.C.S. Aged 63 years.

David W. Deuchars Aged 50 years.

Jonathan Hallam L.L.B., M.B.A.

Tim Wells M.B.A., M.R.I.C.S. Aged 36 years.

Barry C. Winfield B.Sc. Eng.

Secretary

Anthony Braine L.L.B., F.C.I.S. 

Head Office Executive

Andrew Berman B.Sc. (Hons.), A.C.A., Senior Accountant. Aged 33 years.

Ian Davies B.Sc. (Hons.), Development Team Leader. Aged 34 years.

Michael H. Davies F.C.C.A., Corporate Taxation Executive. Aged 55 years.

Simeon M. Fox M.A., Database Administrator. Aged 44 years.

Anthony M. Heyes I.S. Solutions Architect. Aged 40 years.

Graham W. Jones B.Sc. (Hons.), Property Investment Analyst. Aged 34 years.

Charles J. Middleton A.C.C.A., A.T.I.I., Corporate Taxation Executive. Aged 35 years.

Miles H. Price B.Sc. (Hons.), M.Sc., M.R.T.P.I., Planning Executive. Aged 27 years.

Peter Saint Bernard Property Management Accountant. Aged 35 years.

Rebecca J. Scudamore B.A. (Hons.), A.C.I.S., Assistant Secretary.

Stella A. Spence B.A. (Hons.), A.C.I.S., Administration Manager. Aged 46 years.

Broadgate Estates Limited

Responsible for on-site building and estate management of City

properties for the Group and third parties. The Board, chaired 

by John Weston Smith, also comprises the following:

Cyril Metliss F.C.A.

Barry C. Winfield B.Sc. Eng., Managing Director. 

Michael I. Gunston F.R.I.C.S., I.R.R.V. 

John H. Iddiols B.Sc.(Est. Man.), F.R.I.C.S. 

Anthony W. Adams

Robert L. Fisher D.E.M., M.I.E.E. Aged 37 years.

Robert S. Flood M.Sc., M.B.A., F.C.C.A. Aged 53 years.

John Sutherland F.C.I.B.S.E., M.B.I.F.M. Aged 67 years.

Elaine Frazer Aged 42 years.

Neill F. Maclaine I.C.I.O.B. Aged 37 years.

Secretary

Rebecca J. Scudamore B.A. (Hons.), A.C.I.S. 

Overseas
British Land Investments Netherlands B.V.,
Atrium Gebouw, Strawinskylaan 3085,
1077ZX Amsterdam, The Netherlands
Telephone (3120) 642 9848
Fax (3120) 644 2806

Bram Linnartz Joint Managing Director

Paul Colligan F.C.A. F.C.M.A. Joint Managing Director

Arend J. van der Marel Joint Managing Director

Firmount Limited
6 Fitzwilliam Place
Dublin 2, Ireland
Telephone (3531) 676 8666
Fax (3531) 676 8699

Frank Martin F.C.C.A. Managing Director

Principal bankers
The Royal Bank of Scotland plc
UBS AG
Barclays Bank PLC
Lloyds TSB Bank plc
Bayerische Landesbank
Danske Bank A/S

Stockbrokers
UBS Warburg
1 Finsbury Avenue
London EC2M 2PP
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1 Archaeological fieldwork is an endless round of measuring and
recording, often with the clock running down. The long processes
of interpretation, however, can be conducted in less frantic haste.

1
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The directors submit their Report and Accounts for the year

ended 31 March 2001.

Results and dividends

The results for the year are set out in the Consolidated

Profit and Loss Account on page 56.

The directors recommend the payment of a final

dividend of 7.9p per share payable on 24 August 2001 

to Ordinary Shareholders on the register at the close 

of business on 13 July 2001.

Activities

The Group operates in the fields of property investment

and development, finance and investment.

Review of business and prospects

Development of the Group’s activities and its prospects

are reviewed in the Chairman’s Statement and the

Financial and Property Review on pages 5 to 36.

Properties

Changes in properties during the year and details of

property valuations at 31 March 2001 are shown in Note

10 to the financial statements on page 65.

Purchase of own shares

The Company was granted authority at the Annual General

Meeting in 2000 to purchase its own shares up to a total

aggregate value of 10 per cent of the issued nominal

capital. That authority expires at this year’s Annual General

Meeting and a resolution will be proposed for its renewal.

Share and loan capital

The issued share capital has been increased since 

1 April 2000 by fully paid issues as follows:
No. of Ordinary Shares of 25p

10 August 2000 Employee Share Scheme Appropriation 119,367

29 August 2000 to On exercise of options under the 61,679
26 February 2001 1984 Share Option Scheme

1 March 2001 to On exercise of options under the 43,462
30 March 2001 Sharesave Scheme

Substantial interests

As at 29 May 2001 the Company had been notified of

the following major interests in its issued ordinary share

capital, disclosed to it in accordance with Sections 198 to

208 of the Companies Act 1985:
No. of % of
shares issued

(m) capital

Schroder Investment Management Limited 52.6 10.7
CGNU 19.7 3.8

Reappointment of Directors

The directors listed on page 42 constituted the Board during

the year except that during the year, Mr. D. A. Higgs and

Lord Burns were appointed as directors on 14 July 2000,

Mr P. Simon retired as a director on 14 July 2000 and Mr

S. Adam was also a director until his death in February 2001. 

Mr. N. S. J. Ritblat and Mr. R. E. Bowden retire by

rotation at the Annual General Meeting and are eligible 

for re-election. Mr. D. A. Higgs and Lord Burns retire in

accordance with Article 122 of the Articles of Association 

of the Company having been appointed since the last

Annual General Meeting and are eligible for re-election.

Mr. N. S. J. Ritblat and Mr. R. E. Bowden each has a 

two year rolling service contract with the Company. 

Mr. D. A. Higgs and Lord Burns do not have service

contracts with the Company.

Directors’ interests in contracts

Except as stated in Note 23 on page 74, no contract

existed during the year in relation to the Company’s

business in which any director was materially interested.

Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance

The Company purchases liability insurance covering the

directors and officers of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Employee share scheme

Under The British Land Employee Share Scheme,

formed pursuant to the terms of the Finance Act 1978,

as amended, full time directors and employees who have

46

Report of the Directors

1 A new installation for the Tate Modern? The Museum uses more
protective packaging in a year than most mail-order companies.
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served the Company for at least five years may receive

allocations of Ordinary Shares of 25p each in the

Company. The five-year service qualification may be

reduced at the discretion of the directors in selected

cases. 119,367 Ordinary Shares were allocated to 148

participants in August 2000. 12,150 of these shares were

allocated to the executive directors and are included in

the total number of shares in which the directors have 

a beneficial interest shown in Note 4 on page 62.

Sharesave scheme

Under The British Land Sharesave Scheme, executive

directors and employees who have served the Company

for at least two years may be offered options to

purchase shares, tied to a savings contract, over a three

or five year period. Options are held by 207 employees

and directors to purchase a total of 393,320 fully paid

Ordinary Shares at prices of 323p, 347p, 355p, 359p,

438p, 481p and 544p per share, and normally exercisable

during certain six month periods between 1 March 2001

and 31 July 2006. The options held by directors under this

scheme are shown in Note 4 on page 63.

Share option scheme

Options are held by 25 employees and directors pursuant

to The British Land Company PLC 1984 Share Option

Scheme, which is approved under the terms of the

Finance Act 1984, to purchase a total of 1,480,336 fully

paid Ordinary Shares at between 144p and 394p per

share and exercisable between 7 July 1997 and 22

January 2006. These options are exercisable not less

than 3 years (5 years in certain cases) and not more

than 10 years after the date of grant. As at 30 May 2001,

options over 2,947,348 shares had been exercised by the

above mentioned employees and directors. The options

held by directors under this scheme are shown in Note 4

on page 62.

Restricted share plan

The Company’s Restricted Share Plan, which was

approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting

in 1997, provides interests in the shares of the Company

to executives and executive directors.

Executives and executive directors of the 

Company have rights over £2,815,000 nominal of the 

6% Irredeemable Convertible Bonds and over 1,145,279

Ordinary Shares of the Company. The Bonds and Shares

vest not earlier than three years after grant and only 

on attainment of a performance target, settled on advice

from Bacon & Woodrow, consulting actuaries, following

consultation with the National Association of Pension

Funds and the Association of British Insurers. Participants

are entitled to receive interest on their Bonds and

dividends on their Shares from the date of grant until

vesting. The interests of directors under this scheme 

are shown in Note 4 on page 63.

Employment policy

The Group places emphasis on employee involvement

and keeps employees informed through formal and

informal briefings. The Company has a well established

employee share scheme, and a Sharesave scheme

which extends the benefit of employee share options

more widely. These schemes are described above.

There were no major changes in the Group’s

pension schemes during the year. In the United Kingdom

separate pension fund reports are made available to

members.

Applications for employment by disabled persons are

always fully considered, bearing in mind the aptitudes of 

the applicants concerned. In the event of members of staff

becoming disabled every effort is made to ensure that their

employment with the Group continues and that appropriate

training is arranged. It is the policy of the Group that the

training, career development and promotion of disabled

persons should, as far as possible, be identical with that

of other employees.

Charitable donations

£50,050 was donated during the year. No contributions

were made for political purposes.

Auditors

Resolutions concerning Arthur Andersen’s reappointment

and remuneration will be proposed at the Annual

General Meeting.

Payments Policy

In the absence of dispute, amounts due to trade and

other suppliers are settled as expeditiously as possible

within their terms of payment. As at 31 March 2001, there

were 21 (2000 – 24) suppliers’ days outstanding.

Health and Safety

The Board is committed to achieving the highest standards

of care in its attention to health, safety and fire prevention.

The Board requires safe working practices to ensure that

employees, tenants and the general public are not harmed

by the Company’s activities.

This report was approved by the Board on 30 May 2001.

Anthony Braine

Secretary





1 Only a small fraction of the Museum’s collection can be displayed at
any one time. The remainder is held in store, awaiting its hour of glory.

2 She’s probably more interested in glittery hairclips and brightly
coloured bands – that’s if wigs ever came back – this eight year old
would have a head start.

3 Queen Victoria’s parliamentary robes, as worn in Winterhalter’s portrait
of 1859. After Albert’s death in 1861, she never wore them again.
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Statement of compliance with the Code of Best Practice

The Company has complied throughout the year with the

Provisions of the Code of Best Practice set out in section

1 of the Combined Code except that the Company 

does not at present have as an objective the reduction

of directors’ service contracts to one year (see

Remuneration Report).

Board effectiveness

The directors listed on page 42 constituted the Board

throughout the year except that Mr. D. A. Higgs and Lord

Burns were appointed immediately following the 2000

Annual General Meeting, Mr. S. Adam was a director until

his death in February 2001 and Mr. P. W. Simon was also

a director until his retirement in July 2000. The Board

has a regular schedule of meetings together with further

meetings as required by the ongoing business of the

Company. There is a formal schedule of matters reserved

for Board decision.

In March 2001 Mr. D. A. Higgs was appointed as

Deputy Chairman of The British Land Company PLC.

In spite of its asset size, the Company has a head

office team of directors, officers and staff numbering in

all only 138 individuals, so it is not a large organisation.

At the operational level the senior management of The

British Land Corporation Limited involves, in addition to

the Chairman, an Executive Vice Chairman and a Managing

Director. The Audit and Remuneration Committees were

entirely composed of independent non-executive directors.

The Nomination Committee, which is responsible for

making recommendations to the Board on all new 

Board appointments, consists of Mr. M. J. Cassidy,

Mr. R. W. A. Swannell, Mr. D. A. Higgs and Lord Burns,

together with Mr. J. H. Ritblat and Mr. J. H. Weston Smith.

Mr. M. J. Cassidy is the senior non-executive director 

and is chairman of the Remuneration and Nomination

Committees. Mr. Swannell is chairman of the Audit

Committee. 

The Board believes that it is appropriate and in the

shareholders’ best interests, as demonstrated by

sustained performance over an extensive period of years,

for the offices of Chairman and Managing Director 

to be combined in the person of Mr. John Ritblat. 

In an entrepreneurial property company, strategy and 

the implementation of significant transactions, are closely

linked. Examples are the food superstore leasebacks,

the acquisitions of Broadgate and of Meadowhall, the

creation of £3.16 billion of joint ventures and the

innovative £1.54 billion Broadgate securitisation.

Under the Articles of Association of the Company,

one third of the Board of directors retire each year.

Remuneration policy

Details of the Group remuneration policy are set out 

in the Remuneration Report on pages 52 to 53.

Relations with Shareholders

Directors meet institutional shareholders and analysts 

to discuss objectives both in one to one and group

meetings.

The Annual General Meeting not only deals with the

formal business of the Company but provides shareholders

with the opportunity to hear and question the Chairman’s

views on the business and an explanation of the Group’s

performance over the last year in detail.

The Annual and Interim Reports are drafted to

present balanced and understandable assessments of

the Company’s position and prospects.

Internal control

The directors are responsible for the maintenance by the

Group of a sound system of internal control. The Board

has applied the internal control provisions of the Combined

Code by establishing a continuous process for identifying,

evaluating and managing the significant risks the Group

faces. The Board regularly reviews the process, which

has been in place from the start of the year to 

the date of approval of this report and which is in

accordance with Internal Control: Guidance for Directors

on the Combined Code published in September 1999.

1 2
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The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of

internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. Such

a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate

the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can

only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance

against material misstatement or loss.

In compliance with the provisions of the Combined

Code, the Board continuously reviews the effectiveness

of the Group’s system of internal control. The key

features of the internal financial control system that

operated throughout the period covered by the accounts

are described below:

Identification and evaluation of business risks 

and control objectives

The Group has undertaken a comprehensive risk

assessment, involving analysis and management of the

key risks to the Group. The responsibility for each risk

considered has been clearly identified, and the nature 

of each risk and the way it is managed within the Group

has been considered by the Board, the Audit Committee

and the operational boards throughout the year.

The Board and the operational boards consider 

the risk implications of business decisions. These 

include matters such as new treasury products and

major transactions.

Control environment

The management of each key risk has been delegated

by the Board to executive directors and senior executives

within the Group. The executive directors have close

involvement with the day-to-day operational matters 

of the Group.

In addition to the main Board of Directors, there 

are operational boards which are responsible for specific

areas of the Group’s activities. These include:

– group management and operations;

– financing activities;

– management of property assets; and

– management of development activities.

Information systems

The Group has the following key information systems

which generate reports as follows:

– a management reporting system which includes

regular working capital reports and forecasts;

– regular reporting to the Board on property purchases,

sales and portfolio management; and

– regular reporting to the Board on financial and

treasury matters.

Control procedures

The Group’s financial control procedures include the

following:

– control of expenditure and progress on development

projects;

– benchmarking of property performance;

– a detailed authorisation process which ensures that

no commitments are entered into without competent

and proper authorisation by more than one approved

executive;

– a defined schedule of matters reserved for decision

by the Board; and

– continuous assessment of risks facing the Group.

Monitoring

The Audit Committee and the Board meet regularly

throughout the year and have reviewed the Group’s

internal financial controls and the possibility of a need

for an internal audit function.

Going concern

After making enquiries and examining major areas 

which could give rise to significant financial exposure,

the directors are satisfied that no material or significant

exposures exist other than as reflected in these financial

statements and that the Group has adequate resources

to continue its operations for the foreseeable future. For

this reason they continue to adopt the going concern

basis in preparing the accounts.

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The directors are required to prepare financial

statements which comply with the Companies Act 1985

on a going concern basis (unless inappropriate) and

which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs 

of the Company and the Group as at the end of the

financial year and of the profit for that period. In

preparing those financial statements, the directors are

required to:

– select suitable accounting policies and then apply

them consistently;

– make judgements and estimates that are reasonable

and prudent; 

– state whether applicable accounting standards have

been followed, subject to any material departures

disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

and  

– prepare the financial statements on the going concern

basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the

Group will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for ensuring that

proper and adequate accounting records have been

maintained and that reasonable procedures have been

followed for safeguarding the assets of the Group and

for preventing and detecting fraud and other

irregularities.

The directors are also responsible for the Group’s

system of internal controls, which is designed to meet

the Group’s particular needs and the risks to which it 

is exposed.
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1 A measure of athleticism is called for in the conservation of historic
tapestries. Dating back to Tudor and Stuart times, some of them are
almost impossibly fragile.

1





1

2 3

52

Remuneration Report

The Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee during the year consisted

entirely of non-executive directors: following the retirement

of Mr. P. W. Simon at the 2000 Annual General Meeting,

Mr. D. A. Higgs and Lord Burns were appointed to the

Remuneration Committee and Mr. M. J. Cassidy was

appointed as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Committee provides advice and recommendations to 

the Board on overall remuneration policy and determines,

on behalf of the Board, the remuneration packages of

individual executive directors. On matters other than

those concerning him, the Chairman of the Company

may be invited to Committee meetings. The Committee

has access to professional advice from appropriate

internal and external sources. 

The Committee is constituted in accordance with

Schedule A and has given full consideration to Schedule

B of the Combined Code best practice provisions

annexed to the Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authority.

Remuneration policy

The Company’s Executive Remuneration Policy is tailored to

support the strategic objective of delivering long-term value

to its shareholders. The individual elements of remuneration

are balanced to encourage the creativity and innovation

appropriate for a large property company and to enable

the Company to recruit and retain key individuals and

align their rewards with the interests of shareholders.

Basic salary

Basic salary levels for executive directors are reviewed

annually by the Committee, taking into account individual

responsibility, experience and performance as well as the

market-place for similar positions in comparable companies.

Annual cash bonus

The annual cash bonus is designed to encourage executive

directors to achieve the highest level of annual corporate

performance. Awards are not contractual and are paid 

on the basis of the individual’s contribution during the

preceding year as well as individual and team performance.

No bonus awards are pensionable.

Long-term incentives

The Company believes that plans which facilitate share

ownership by executive directors and senior executives

strengthen the links between individual and shareholder

interests. In order to provide a flexible and competitive

package, the Company operates both an Executive Share

Option Scheme and a Restricted Share Plan. The two plans

have been approved by shareholders in general meeting

and awards are made with regard to the Combined Code’s

comments on spreading grants. Awards will not be made

under the plans concurrently.

Under the Executive Share Option Scheme, market

value options are granted at the discretion of the

Committee. Options may become exercisable after three

years (or five years in certain cases), dependent on

performance targets being met. Under the Restricted

Share Plan executives and directors are granted

provisional interests in securities of the Company 

that vest according to performance against targets.

Both the Executive Share Option Scheme and 

the Restricted Share Plan, require the achievement of

performance targets that compare the growth in the

Company’s net asset value against the Capital Growth

Index of the Investment Property Databank. The Committee

reviews these performance conditions on a regular basis

to ensure that they are both sufficiently stretching and that

they remain relevant to the Company’s strategic objectives.

1 Holding operation – Museum staff fight a constant battle
to counter the effects of material degeneration. Here a
collection of wax figures receives routine maintenance. 

2 Wooden club from the Thames at Chelsea, radiocarbon-
dated to 3530-3340BC, three millennia before Romans
founded the modern city.

3 Snaffle bit and chariot fittings, precisely dated to the
time of Caesar’s expeditions and quite possibly
belonging to the British force that opposed him.
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The Company has, in addition, a well established

Employee Share Scheme, founded pursuant to the Finance

Act 1978 as amended, and a Sharesave Scheme that

extends the benefit of employee share options. Directors

are eligible to participate in both these schemes.

No long-term incentive award is pensionable.

Remuneration of non-executive directors

The fees for non-executive directors are reviewed annually

by the Board after considering recommendations by the

executive directors. Non-executive directors are not eligible

for bonus, long-term incentives or pension entitlements.

Contracts of service

The only directors whose service contracts provide 

for notice periods in excess of one year are Messrs. 

N. S. J. Ritblat and R. E. Bowden, who voluntarily, without

compensation, reduced their rolling service contracts

from three years to two years. Individuals of the

necessary calibre in the property, investment banking

and similar areas are in short supply and highly sought

after. It is considered in the best interest of shareholders

to retain these service commitments for these 

key executives.

Compensation payments on early termination

The Company applies the principle of mitigation in the

event of early termination of service contracts.

Pensions

The Company sponsors a tax approved non-contributory

defined benefit pension scheme. The scheme generally

aims to provide executives with at least 20 years service

to age 60 with a pension at that age of two-thirds of

basic salary, less the single person’s basic state pension. 

Directors’ emoluments

Full details of directors’ emoluments are contained within

Note 4 to the financial statements on pages 61 to 64.

This report was approved by the Board on 30 May 2001.

Michael Cassidy

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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1 Archaeological surveys are an integral (and mandatory)
part of the planning process. Specialists from the
Museum of London have evaluated many of the
capital’s prime development sites. The work is put 
out to competitive tender.

2 Mrs Pankhurst being arrested, one of many thousands
of historic photographs in the Museum’s collections.

3 Evening in the City of London by David Bomberg
(1944). St Paul’s dominates the composition.
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Report of the Auditors to the Shareholders of 

The British Land Company PLC

We have audited the accounts on pages 56 to 74 which

have been prepared under the historical cost convention

as modified by the revaluation of certain fixed assets

and the accounting policies set out on page 60. 

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual

Report including, as described on page 50, preparing the

accounts in accordance with applicable United Kingdom

law and accounting standards. Our responsibilities,

as independent auditors, are established in the United

Kingdom by statute, the Auditing Practices Board, the

Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, and by

our profession's ethical guidance.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the

accounts give a true and fair view and are properly

prepared in accordance with the Companies Act. We

also report to you if, in our opinion, the directors' report is

not consistent with the accounts, if the company has not

kept proper accounting records, if we have not received

all the information and explanations we require for our

audit, or if information specified by law or the Listing

Rules regarding directors' remuneration and transactions

with the company and the group is not disclosed.

We review whether the corporate governance

statement on pages 49 and 50 reflects the company's

compliance with the seven provisions of the Combined

Code specified for our review by the Financial Services

Authority, and we report if it does not. We are not

required to consider whether the board’s statements on

internal control cover all risks and controls, or form an

opinion on the effectiveness of the company's corporate

governance procedures or its risk and control procedures.

We read the other information contained in the

Annual Report, including the corporate governance

statement, and consider whether it is consistent with the

audited accounts. We consider the implications for our

report if we become aware of any apparent

misstatements or material inconsistencies with 

the accounts.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing

Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. 

An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of

evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in 

the accounts. It also includes an assessment of the

significant estimates and judgements made by the

directors in the preparation of the accounts and of

whether the accounting policies are appropriate to 

the circumstances of the company and of the group,

consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to

obtain all the information and explanations which we

considered necessary in order to provide us with

sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the

accounts are free from material misstatement, whether

caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming

our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of

the presentation of information in the accounts.

Opinion

In our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of

the state of affairs of the company and of the group at

31 March 2001 and of the group's profit and cash flows

for the year then ended and have been properly

prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985.

Arthur Andersen

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors

1 Surrey Street, London, WC2R 2PS

30 May 2001

Report of the Auditors

1 The atmosphere around the galleries is relaxed and
informal but much serious research is carried out in
the Museum’s laboratories. Microscopy is one of many
scientific disciplines that are embraced.
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31 March 2001

Note 2001 2000
£m £m

Gross rental income 472.9 443.7

Less share of joint ventures 11 (84.8) (75.4)

Gross rental income – Group 2 388.1 368.3

Operating profit 2 372.5 367.1

Share of operating profits of joint ventures 11 75.8 68.9

Profit on the disposal of fixed assets (including £3.7m from joint ventures, 2000 – £2.9m) 3 32.1 3.3

Profit on ordinary activities before interest 480.4 439.3

Net interest payable (before exceptional item) 5 (311.3) (282.9)

Exceptional item 5 (83.6)

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 85.5 156.4

Taxation 6 (10.2) (27.6)

Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 75.3 128.8

Minority interest (0.1)

Profit for the financial year 75.3 128.7

Ordinary dividends 7 (59.6) (56.5)

Retained profit for the financial year 20 15.7 72.2

Basic and diluted pre-exceptional earnings per share 8 28.7p 24.8p

Basic and diluted earnings per share 8 14.5p 24.8p

Dividend per share 7 11.5p 10.9p

The results stated above relate to the continuing activities of the Group.
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Balance Sheets as at 31 March 2001

Parent Group

2001 2000 2001 2000
£m £m Note £m £m

Fixed assets

Investment properties 10 7,150.4 6,777.8

234.9 199.8 Investments in joint ventures

Share of gross assets 11 1,579.9 1,219.3

Share of gross liabilities 11 (867.2) (648.5)

234.9 199.8 11 712.7 570.8

8,323.1 8,096.1 Other investments 12 73.7 150.4

8,558.0 8,295.9 7,936.8 7,499.0

Current assets

Trading properties 10 53.3 69.0

79.6 43.6 Debtors 13 142.5 41.8

30.4 54.1 Cash and deposits 16 94.2 118.4

110.0 97.7 Total current assets 290.0 229.2

(5,025.2) (4,536.6) Creditors due within one year 14 (700.6) (566.0)

(4,915.2) (4,438.9) Net current liabilities (410.6) (336.8)

3,642.8 3,857.0 Total assets less current liabilities 7,526.2 7,162.2

(1,513.8) (1,670.0) Creditors due after one year 15 (3,057.3) (3,249.4)

(463.9) (463.2) Convertible bonds 16 (463.9) (463.2)

1,665.1 1,723.8 4,005.0 3,449.6

Capital and reserves

129.6 129.5 Called up share capital 19 129.6 129.5

1,105.3 1,104.6 Share premium 20 1,105.3 1,104.6 John Ritblat

0.4 1.0 Other reserves 20 (1.9) (1.2)

103.8 99.5 Revaluation reserve 20 2,092.1 1,619.0

326.0 389.2 Profit and loss account 20 679.9 597.7

1,665.1 1,723.8 Shareholders’ funds 4,005.0 3,449.6 John Weston Smith

Net Asset Value per share 18 802p 694p
Directors

(The NAV per share includes the external valuation Approved by the Board on 30 May 2001
surplus on development and trading properties)
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Other Primary Statements for the year ended 31 March 2001

2001 2000
£m £m

Total recognised gains and losses

Profit for the financial year 75.3 128.7

Unrealised surplus on revaluation:

– investment properties 528.4 220.9

– joint ventures 5.6 37.7

– other investments 5.6 1.3

539.6 259.9

Exchange movements on net investments (0.7) (0.4)

Total recognised gains and losses 614.2 388.2

2001 2000
£m £m

Historical cost profits and losses

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 85.5 156.4

Realisation of prior year revaluations 66.5 3.3

Historical cost profit on ordinary activities before taxation 152.0 159.7

Historical cost profit for the year retained after taxation,

minority interest and dividends 82.2 75.5

2001 2000
£m £m

Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds (excluding valuation surplus on development and trading properties)

Profit for the financial year 75.3 128.7

Ordinary dividends (59.6) (56.5)

Retained profit for the year 15.7 72.2

Revaluation of investment properties and investments 539.6 259.9

Exchange movements on net investments (0.7) (0.4)

554.6 331.7

Shares issued 0.8 0.1

Increase in shareholders’ funds 555.4 331.8

Opening shareholders’ funds 3,449.6 3,117.8

Closing shareholders’ funds 4,005.0 3,449.6
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Group Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2001

2001 2000
Note £m £m

Net cash inflow from operating activities 17 384.8 432.2

Dividends received from joint ventures 0.8

Returns on investments and servicing of finance

Interest received 10.2 38.2

Interest paid (342.7) (302.2)

Interest paid on finance leases (17.8)

Dividends received 6.8 1.1
(325.7) (280.7)

Taxation (paid) received (26.1) 0.3

Net cash inflow from operating activities and investments after finance charges and taxation 33.8 151.8

Capital expenditure and financial investment

Purchase of investment properties (231.8) (203.0)

Purchase of investments (9.8) (73.7)

Sale of investment properties 403.6 116.3

Sale of investments 47.1 22.5
209.1 (137.9)

Acquisitions and disposals

Purchase of Meadowhall Shopping Centre (8.0) (705.0)

Cash at bank acquired with Meadowhall Shopping Centre 9.8

Purchase of other subsidiary companies (10.7)

Investment in and loans to joint ventures (134.7) (95.7)

Sale of shares in and loans repaid by joint ventures 10.8 175.1
(131.9) (626.5)

Equity dividends paid 17 (57.5) (92.3)

Net cash inflow (outflow) before management of liquid resources and financing 53.5 (704.9)

Management of liquid resources

Increase in term deposits (1.0) (25.7)

Financing

Issue of ordinary shares 0.4 0.1

Issue of Broadgate securitised debt 1,529.3

Repayment of finance leases (286.4)

Decrease in bank and other borrowings (78.0) (544.5)
(77.6) 698.5

Decrease in cash 17 (25.1) (32.1)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies is set out below. The policies have been applied

consistently, in all material respects throughout the current and the previous year.

Accounting basis

The accounts are prepared in accordance with applicable Accounting Standards and under 

the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of investment properties and fixed

asset investments.

Consolidation

The consolidated accounts include the accounts of the parent and all subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries or joint ventures acquired or disposed of during the year are included from the

date of acquisition or to the date of disposal and accounted for under the acquisition method.

Accounting practices of subsidiaries and joint ventures which differ from Group accounting

policies are adjusted on consolidation.

In accordance with Section 230(3) of the Companies Act 1985 a separate profit and loss

account for the Parent is not presented.

Joint ventures and other investments

In accordance with FRS 9 joint ventures are included under the gross equity method. As a result

the Group’s balance sheet discloses the Group’s share of the gross assets and gross liabilities of

the joint ventures. The Group’s share of joint venture operating profit, net interest payable and

taxation are included at the relevant point in the Group profit and loss account.

Where the Group participates in a joint arrangement that is not an entity, it accounts for 

its own assets, liabilities and cash flows, measured according to the terms of the agreement

governing the arrangement.

Other fixed asset investments are stated at market value when listed and at directors’

valuation when unlisted. Any surplus or deficit arising on revaluation is taken to the revaluation

reserve, unless a deficit is expected to be permanent, in which case it is charged to the 

profit and loss account.

Current asset investments are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost or directors’ valuation.

Properties

(i) INVESTMENT PROPERTIES are independently valued each year on an open market basis. 

Any surplus or deficit arising is transferred to revaluation reserve, unless a deficit is expected to

be permanent, in which case it is charged to the profit and loss account. The profit on disposal is

based on book value.

In accordance with Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 19 no amortisation or

depreciation is provided in respect of freehold or long leasehold properties. The directors

consider that this accounting policy, which represents a departure from the statutory accounting

rules, is necessary to provide a true and fair view. The financial effect of the departure from these

rules cannot reasonably be quantified as depreciation or amortisation is only one of the many

factors reflected in the annual valuation and the amount which might otherwise have been shown

cannot be separately identified or quantified. Where properties held for investment are

appropriated to trading stock, they are transferred at market value.

(ii) TRADING PROPERTIES are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Disposals 

are recognised on completion: profits and losses arising are dealt with through the profit and 

loss account. If properties held for trading are appropriated to investment, they are transferred 

at book value.

(iii) DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost

of properties in course of development includes attributable interest and other outgoings having

regard to the development potential of the property. Interest is calculated on the development

expenditure by reference to specific borrowings where relevant and otherwise on the average rate

applicable to short-term loans.

A property ceases to be treated as a development on practical completion.

Debt instruments and interest rate derivatives

Debt instruments are stated at their net proceeds on issue. Issue costs are amortised to the profit

and loss account over the life of the instrument and are included in interest payable.

Amounts payable or receivable under interest rate derivatives are matched with the interest

payable on the debt which the derivatives hedge. In the course of the Group’s investment and

financing activity underlying debt may be retired or redeemed such that an interest rate derivative

becomes surplus. In these circumstances the derivative is marked to market or closed out. Any

deficit/surplus arising is charged/credited to the profit and loss account.

Leased assets

Payments under finance leases are treated as consisting of capital and interest elements. 

The interest element of rental obligations is charged to the profit and loss account over 

the period of the lease in proportion to the balance of capital repayments outstanding.

Taxation

Corporation tax payable is provided on taxable profits at the current rate.

On disposal of an investment property the element of tax relating to the Capital profit is

charged to the profit and loss account and the element relating to earlier revaluation surpluses 

is included in the Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses.

Provision is made for deferred taxation using the liability method to take account of timing

differences between the incidence of income and expenditure for taxation and accounting

purposes to the extent that it is probable that a liability or asset will crystallise.

Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange at the date of the

transaction or, if hedged, at the forward contract rate. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated

in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are reported at the rates of exchange prevailing at

that date or, if appropriate, at the forward contract rate.

The results of overseas operations are translated at the closing rates of exchange during 

the period and their balance sheets at the rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange

differences arising on translation of the opening net assets and on foreign currency borrowings, to

the extent that they hedge the group’s investment in such operations, are dealt with through

reserves. All other exchange differences are included in the profit and loss account.

Pensions

The pension cost charged to the profit and loss account is such as to spread the cost of

pensions over the average remaining working lives of employees who are scheme members.
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2 Operating profit

2001 2000
£m £m

Gross rental income 388.1 368.3

Rents payable (1.8) (2.1)

Other property outgoings (15.8) (18.7)

Net rental income 370.5 347.5

Profit on property trading (see below) 3.1 41.0

Other income (see below) 27.5 5.3

Administrative expenses (28.6) (26.7)

Operating profit 372.5 367.1

Profit on property trading

Sale proceeds 22.1 124.0

Cost of sales (19.0) (83.0)

Profit on property trading 3.1 41.0

In arriving at the operating profit the following items have been included:

Amortisation and depreciation 0.4 0.4

Auditors’ remuneration 0.5 0.5

Auditors’ remuneration for other services* 1.4 2.3

* Auditors’ remuneration for other services is split equally between Transactions (including capital 

market issues) and tax advisory and compliance.

On 5 June 2000, the Group entered into a conditional agreement to acquire a 29.7% stake in

Liberty International PLC from Standard Bank of South Africa and related parties. Subsequently,

Liberty International agreed to pay Standard Bank a higher price for the shares and Standard Bank

bought out the Group’s rights on a pre-agreed formula, resulting in a capital profit of £15.3 million

net of costs. These amounts are included within Other income.

Turnover

Turnover and profit are derived from continuing operations predominantly in the United Kingdom.

3 Profit on the disposal of fixed assets

The profit for the year includes £14.6m arising on the disposal of Selfridges shares.

4 Directors’ emoluments and staff costs

Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2001

Annual
Salary Bonus Benefits 2001 Total 2000 Total

£ £ £ £ £

J. H. Ritblat 634,000 300,000 17,605 951,605 838,754

C. Metliss 201,950 75,000 19,622 296,572 293,155

J. H. Weston Smith 301,500 75,000 19,981 396,481 371,628

P. W. Simon 8,320 8,320 25,000

S. L. Kalman 63,948

N. S. J. Ritblat 241,500 75,000 19,041 335,541 290,544

M. J. Cassidy 25,000 25,000 21,000

J. R. Reynolds 3,715

R. E. Bowden 226,500 50,000 17,040 293,540 248,445

S. Adam 207,625 25,000 15,198 247,823 197,112

R. W. A. Swannell 25,000 25,000 13,549

D. A. Higgs 17,820 17,820

Lord Burns 17,820 17,820

1,907,035 600,000 108,487 2,615,522 2,366,850

2001 2000
Staff costs (including Directors) £m £m

Wages and salaries 17.0 15.0

Social security costs 1.5 1.6

Pension contributions 1.7 2.4

20.2 19.0

Average number of employees of the Group during the year was 602 (2000 – 585) of which

some 469 (2000 – 464) were employed directly at the Group’s properties and their costs

recharged to tenants.
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No options were granted to or exercised by directors during the year.

*These options are linked to a corresponding grant of options. Accordingly the exercise of one linked option over a number of

shares automatically causes its counterpart to lapse in respect of the same number of shares; therefore these options do not

increase the total number of shares under option. The totals in the table reflect the number of shares under option.

4 Directors’ emoluments and staff costs (continued)

Directors and their interests in share and loan capital

Beneficial interests of the Directors in the share and loan capital of the Company.

Options over
Rights under Restricted Share Plan

Ordinary Shares 6% Irredeemable 6% Irredeemable
Fully Paid Convertible Bonds Ordinary 121/2% Bonds 2016** Convertible Bonds

Ordinary Shares Sharesave Scheme 1984 Option Scheme (£ nominal) Shares (£ nominal) (£ nominal)

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2000* 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001

J. H. Ritblat 2,301,014 2,303,039 4,753 4,753 295,783 295,783 986,000 200,000 100,000 250,000

C. Metliss 108,072 110,080 4,753 4,753

J. H. Weston Smith 84,478 86,503 4,753 4,753 150,283 150,283 369,000 100,000 50,000 125,000

N. S. J. Ritblat 33,210 11,097 4,295 4,295 59,201 59,201 262,000 75,000 60,000 135,000 280,500

M. J. Cassidy 25,000 5,000

R. E. Bowden 29,214 31,239 5,340 5,340 184,250 184,250 183,000 65,000 40,000 115,000 50,000 50,000

R. W. A. Swannell 3,750 3,750

Lord Burns 1,190

D. A. Higgs 5,000

*or date of appointment if after 31 March 2000.

**on 1 May 2001, the 121/2% Bonds 2016 were repurchased by the Company.

Directors’ options and Restricted Share Plan interests by date of grant and exercise price 

(i) 1984 Share Option Scheme

Beneficial interests of the Directors under the Company’s 1984 Share Option Scheme in Ordinary Shares of the Company.

J. H. Ritblat J. H. Weston Smith N. S. J. Ritblat R. E. Bowden

First
Date Price Exercise Expiry 1 April 31 March 1 April 31 March 1 April 31 March 1 April 31 March 
Granted p Date Date 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001

6.7.94 380 6.7.97 5.7.2004 60,600 60,600

6.7.94 322 6.7.99 5.7.2004 20,200 20,200

6.7.94 380 6.7.97 5.7.2004 20,200* 20,200*

23.1.96 394 23.1.99 22.1.2006 132,418 132,418 60,092 60,092 11,244 11,244 103,450 103,450

23.1.96 394 23.1.2001 22.1.2006 163,365 163,365 90,191 90,191 47,957 47,957

295,783 295,783 150,283 150,283 59,201 59,201 184,250 184,250

All new grants of options are subject to a performance target which has been approved by the Association of British Insurers 

and the National Association of Pension Funds. The middle market quotation for the Ordinary 25p Shares of the Company 

at the close of business on 30 March 2001 was 499p. The highest and lowest middle market quotations during the year 

to 31 March 2001 were 507p and 383p.
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4 Directors’ emoluments and staff costs (continued)

(ii) Sharesave Scheme

Beneficial interests of the Directors under the Company’s Sharesave Scheme in Ordinary Shares of the Company.

J. H. Ritblat C. Metliss J. H. Weston Smith N. S. J. Ritblat R. E. Bowden

First
Date Price Exercise Expiry 1 April 31 March 1 April 31 March 1 April 31 March 1 April 31 March 1 April 31 March

Granted p Date Date 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001

1.3.96 323 1.3.2001 31.8.2001 3,204 3,204 5,340 5,340

1.3.99 355 1.3.2002 31.8.2002 1,091 1,091

1.3.99 355 1.3.2004 31.8.2004 4,753 4,753 4,753 4,753 4,753 4,753

4,753 4,753 4,753 4,753 4,753 4,753 4,295 4,295 5,340 5,340

No options were granted to or were exercised by directors during the year.

(iii) Restricted Share Plan

Beneficial interests of the Directors under the Company’s Restricted Share Plan in the 6% Irredeemable Convertible Bonds (£ nominal) and Ordinary Shares of the Company.

J. H. Ritblat J. H. Weston Smith N. S. J. Ritblat R. E. Bowden S. Adam

6% Irredeemable Convertible Bonds
Date

13.10.97 Grant £786,000 £269,000 £187,000 £118,000 £40,000

17.7.98 Grant £200,000 £100,000 £75,000 £65,000 £60,000

31.3.00 £986,000 £369,000 £262,000 £183,000 £100,000

30.11.00 Grant* £393,000 £134,500 £93,500 £59,000 £20,000

30.11.00 Release* (£1,179,000) (£403,500) (£280,500) (£177,000) (£60,000)

31.3.01 £200,000 £100,000 £75,000 £65,000 £60,000**

Ordinary Shares
Date

1.9.99 Grant 100,000 50,000 60,000 40,000 40,000

8.12.00 Grant 150,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000

31.3.01 250,000 125,000 135,000 115,000 115,000**

Distribution in year *** £1,244,639 £430,460 £299,970 £193,615 £72,630

Awards only vest on achievement of a performance target agreed following consultation with the Association of British Insurers and the National Association of Pension Funds.

*These items represent the release of the awards made on 13.10.97 at 150% of their original nominal value on outperformance of the performance target set. 

**At date of death.

***The amounts distributed represents the market value of the grant released on 30 November 2000 together with interest and dividends arising on the beneficial interests for the year ended 31 March 2001. On 30 November 2000 Messrs J. H. Ritblat, Weston Smith,

Bowden and Adam sold the above released bond awards at a price of £100 per cent and 69 days accrued interest.
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4 Directors’ emoluments and staff costs (continued)

Directors’ pension benefits for the year

Three executive directors, Mr. N. S. J. Ritblat, Mr. R. E. Bowden and Mr. S. Adam until his death,

earned pension benefits in the scheme during the year. 

Mr. Bowden’s benefits from the tax approved scheme are restricted by the earnings cap

and he is, therefore, entitled to benefit from the Company’s Funded Unapproved Retirement

Benefit Scheme (FURBS). Mr Adam was similarly restricted and entitled to benefit from the FURBS.

The benefits provided by the FURBS are defined lump sums. Mr Bowden is liable to income tax,

which the Company has agreed to pay on his behalf, (known as pension related payments) on

Company contributions paid into the FURBS. The liability of the Company at 31 March 2001 is

£157,000 (2000 – £Nil).

Non-executive directors do not participate in any Company sponsored pension arrangement.

The pension benefits earned during the year by Mr. Ritblat, Mr. Bowden and Mr. Adam 

were as follows:

Increase Total Increase Total accrued
in accrued accrued in accrued FURBS

pension pension FURBS lump lump sum
Age at during entitlement sum entitlement entitlement

Name year end the year at year end during the year at year end
£ £ £ £

N. S. J. Ritblat 39 14,000 60,000

R. E. Bowden 57 2,000 18,000 63,000 234,000

S. Adam 53 3,000 14,000 93,000 182,000

Notes:
1 The pension entitlement shown is that which would be paid annually on retirement at age 60 based on service to the end of

the year. The total accrued FURBS lump sum entitlement shown is that which would be paid, on retirement at age 60 based 
on service to the end of the year.

2 The increase in both accrued pension and lump sum during the year excludes any increase for inflation.
3 Members of the scheme have the option to pay Additional Voluntary Contributions. Neither the contributions nor the resulting

benefits are included in the above table.
4 Mr. S. Adam died during the year. The pension amounts stated above reflect his period of service up to his death.
5 The following is additional information relating to directors’ pensions for those included in the above table:

Main Scheme
a Normal retirement age for pension arrangements is age 60.
b Retirement may take place at any age after 50 subject to the consent of both the Company and the Trustees of the pension

scheme. Pensions are reduced to allow for their earlier payment.
c On death in service the arrangement provides a capital sum equal to four times salary and a spouse’s pension of two-thirds 

of the member’s prospective pension at age 60. If a member is granted a deferred pension, a spouse’s pension of two-thirds 
of the member’s accrued pension is payable on death before or after retirement. These pensions are paid throughout the
spouse’s lifetime or until the youngest child reaches age 18, if later.

d Pensions are guaranteed to increase each year in line with the increase in the Index of Retail Prices (RPI) subject to 
a maximum of 5%. The Trustees may grant additional discretionary increases subject to the consent of the Company. 
Statutory increases apply to pensions during deferment.

e Transfer value calculations allow for discretionary pension increases such that, in aggregate, pension increases in line with
increases in the RPI are valued.

FURBS
a Normal retirement age for pension arrangements is age 60.
b Retirement may take place at any age after 50 subject to the Company’s consent. Benefits are reduced to allow for their 

earlier payment.
c On death in service top up lump sums are provided so that, in aggregate, the payee receives broadly the same value 

of benefits (net of tax) as if the earnings cap did not apply. On death in deferment if a spouse’s or dependant’s pension 
is payable from the main scheme a lump sum of two-thirds of the member’s accrued lump sum is also payable.

d In deferment accrued lump sums are increased in line with statutory increases on pensions in deferment.

5 Net interest payable

2001 2000
British Land Group £m £m

Payable on: bank loans and overdrafts 52.9 41.5

other loans 222.4 214.5

finance leases 15.3

275.3 271.3

Deduct: development cost element (4.0) (1.4)

271.3 269.9

Receivable on: deposits and securities (5.7) (20.6)

loans to joint ventures (16.0) (15.3)

Total British Land Group 249.6 234.0

Share of joint ventures

Interest payable on shareholder loans 16.0 15.3

Other interest payable (net) 45.7 33.6

Total share of joint ventures (note 10) 61.7 48.9

Net interest payable 311.3 282.9

Exceptional item 83.6

On 30 March 2001 the Company announced the decision to offer to repurchase the £150m 12.5%

Bonds 2016 and the £150m 8.875% Bonds 2023. The repurchase was completed on 1 May 2001.

Inclusive of costs, the pre-tax exceptional charge was £83.6m (post tax charge: £74.6m). 

The premium paid to repurchase the bonds was partially offset by a profit of £20.3m on the close

out of derivative contracts associated with the Bonds.

6 Taxation

2001 2000
£m £m

U.K. corporation tax 20.4 21.8

Deferred tax (8.6) 6.2

Foreign tax 1.4 2.3

Attributable to joint ventures 4.3 5.0

Prior years adjustment – ACT (6.0)

Prior years adjustment – Corporation Tax (1.3) (7.7)

Total taxation (effective tax rate - 11.9%, 2000 - 17.6%) 10.2 27.6

The availability of capital allowances and prior year items reduces the effective tax rate.
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7 Ordinary dividends

2001 2000 2001 2000
pence pence £m £m

Interim (paid 20 February 2001) 3.60 3.40 18.7 17.6

Proposed final 7.90 7.50 40.9 38.9

Total for year 11.50 10.90 59.6 56.5

The final dividend of 7.90p will be paid on 24 August 2001 to shareholders on the register 

at the close of business on 13 July 2001. The ex-dividend date is 11 July 2001.

Investment, development and trading properties were valued by external valuers on the basis 

of open market value in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation Manual published by 

The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.

£m

On an open market basis – External valuations:

United Kingdom: Weatherall Green & Smith 7,221.2

Republic of Ireland: Jones Lang LaSalle 111.7

Netherlands: CB Richard Ellis B.V. 1.1

Total investment, development and trading properties 7,334.0

Properties valued at £3,754.5m (2000 – £3,241.6m) were charged to secure Group borrowings.

Of the total secured debt of £583.1m (Note 16) only £476.6m has recourse to the Group. 

Cumulative interest capitalised in investment and trading properties amounts to £15.1m and 

£Nil (2000 – £14.5m and £Nil) respectively.

Long Short
Freehold Leasehold Leasehold Total

£m £m £m £m

Investment and development properties

Valuation and cost 1 April 2000 6,548.2 229.6 6,777.8

Additions 244.4 0.9 245.3

Disposals (348.6) (56.4) (405.0)

Reallocations (8.6) 8.6

Exchange fluctuations 3.9 3.9

Revaluation 526.6 1.8 528.4

Valuation and cost 31 March 2001 6,965.9 184.5 7,150.4

Trading properties

At lower of cost and net realisable value

31 March 2001 48.9 2.2 2.2 53.3

External valuation surplus on development and trading properties 130.3

Total investment, development and trading properties 7,334.0

£m

Total external valuation surplus on development and trading properties

Development and trading properties 130.3

Share of joint ventures 19.1

149.4

Included in the leasehold properties is an amount of £13.0m, in respect of property occupied 

by the Group.

The historical cost of properties held by investment subsidiaries was £5,221.7m (2000 – £5,317.1m).

10 Investment, development and trading properties

8 Basic and diluted earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share are based on the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders

and on the weighted average of 518.1 million shares in issue (2000 – 518.0 million). Earnings per

share on a pre-exceptional basis are calculated by excluding the post tax effect of the

exceptional item (£74.6m) described in note 5.

9 Parent Company’s results

Loss on ordinary activities after taxation attributable to parent was £3.5m (2000 – profit £66.6m).
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11 Joint ventures’ summary financial statements

The Public BL BL Rank BL BLT Tesco
House Universal Properties Fraser Properties BL

Company Ltd PLC Ltd Ltd Ltd Holdings Ltd

All joint ventures are held equally on a 50:50 basis

Date established April 1995 February 1997 August 1997 July 1999 November 1996 November 1999

Accounting year end 31 March 31 March 31 December 27 January 20 December 20 December

Summarised profit and loss accounts £m £m £m £m £m £m

Gross rental income 19.2 63.9 11.9 12.9 14.3 19.9

Net rental income 18.8 57.3 11.7 12.7 14.3 19.5

Other expenditure (0.2) (2.2) (1.7) (0.3) (0.3) (0.4)

Operating profit 18.6 55.1 10.0 12.4 14.0 19.1

Net interest – external (13.0) (31.7) (6.9) (8.9) (10.2) (14.7)

– shareholders (20.0) (4.6) (2.6) (1.5) (3.3)

Net interest (payable) receivable (13.0) (51.7) (11.5) (11.5) (11.7) (18.0)

Revenue profit (loss) 5.6 3.4 (1.5) 0.9 2.3 1.1

Disposal of fixed assets 1.3 4.9 0.7

Profit (loss) before tax 6.9 8.3 (0.8) 0.9 2.3 1.1

Tax (0.4) (2.3) (1.2)

Profit (loss) after tax 6.5 6.0 (0.8) 0.9 1.1 1.1

Summarised statements of recognised gains and losses

Profit (loss) retained for the year 6.5 6.0 (0.8) 0.9 1.1 1.1

Unrealised surplus (deficit) on revaluation 14.2 (33.7) (2.7) 0.5 (2.6) 21.3

Total return 20.7 (27.7) (3.5) 1.4 (1.5) 22.4

Summarised balance sheets

Investment properties at valuation 230.5 997.3 150.3 201.2 219.4 317.9

Development properties at cost

Total properties 230.5 997.3 150.3 201.2 219.4 317.9

Current assets 22.5 52.8 4.7 7.6 10.9 4.6

Gross assets 253.0 1,050.1 155.0 208.8 230.3 322.5

Current liabilities (8.7) (86.7) (5.9) (10.5) (13.8) (8.4)

Bank debt falling due within one year (5.0)

Bank debt falling due after one year (130.6) (170.6) (102.7) (138.9) (134.5) (209.2)

Debentures (294.9)

Gross liabilities (144.3) (552.2) (108.6) (149.4) (148.3) (217.6)

Net external assets 108.7 497.9 46.4 59.4 82.0 104.9

Represented by:

Shareholder loans 2.2 263.4 44.4 53.2 18.3 80.6

Ordinary shareholders’ funds/Partners’ capital 106.5 234.5 2.0 6.2 63.7 24.3

Total Investment 108.7 497.9 46.4 59.4 82.0 104.9

Capital commitments 10.4 21.0

Contingent liabilities 5.0 44.5 0.9 4.5 1.8

The Group’s share of the market value of the debt and derivatives as at 31 March 2001 was £18.4 million more than the Group’s share of the book value.

All companies are property investment companies registered in England and Wales unless otherwise stated. 
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11 Joint ventures’ summary financial statements (continued)

London Cherrywood Other British
BL and Henley Properties Ltd Joint Land

West Holdings Ltd (Rep of Ireland) Ventures Share

All joint ventures are held equally on a 50:50 basis

Date established September 2000 December 2000 April 1999

Accounting year end 31 December 31 March 31 December
(unaudited)

Summarised profit and loss accounts £m £m £m £m £m

Gross rental income 6.3 2.6 0.3 18.3 84.8

Net rental income 5.9 2.0 0.1 15.4

Other expenditure (0.2) (0.2) (0.1) (0.6)

Operating profit 5.7 1.8 14.8 75.8

Net interest – external (4.8) (2.1) (0.1) 1.0 (45.7)

– shareholders (16.0)

Net interest (payable) receivable (4.8) (2.1) (0.1) 1.0 (61.7)

Revenue profit (loss) 0.9 (0.3) (0.1) 15.8 14.1

Disposal of fixed assets 0.6 3.7

Profit (loss) before tax 0.9 (0.3) (0.1) 16.4 17.8

Tax (0.2) (4.5) (4.3)

Profit (loss) after tax 0.7 (0.3) (0.1) 11.9

Summarised statements of recognised gains and losses

Profit (loss) retained for the year 0.7 (0.3) (0.1) 11.9

Unrealised surplus (deficit) on revaluation 10.7 17.9 0.6 (10.2) 8.0

Total return 11.4 17.6 0.5 1.7

Summarised balance sheets

Investment properties at valuation 361.0 170.0 218.5

Development properties at cost 0.6 75.0 71.8

Total properties 361.0 170.6 75.0 290.3 1,506.8

Current assets 17.8 3.8 1.8 19.8

Gross assets 378.8 174.4 76.8 310.1 1,579.9

Current liabilities (11.1) (6.8) (14.7) (4.0)

Bank debt falling due within one year

Bank debt falling due after one year (263.8) (113.6)

Debentures

Gross liabilities (274.9) (120.4) (14.7) (4.0) (867.2)

Net external assets 103.9 54.0 62.1 306.1 712.7

Represented by:

Shareholder loans 26.4 31.2 124.1 321.9

Ordinary shareholders’ funds/Partners’ capital 103.9 27.6 30.9 182.0 390.8

Total Investment 103.9 54.0 62.1 306.1 712.7

Capital commitments 0.1 69.2 50.4

Contingent liabilities 2.5 15.1 0.5 5.2 40.0

The Group’s share of the market value of the debt and derivatives as at 31 March 2001 was £18.4 million more than the Group’s share of the book value.

All companies are property investment companies registered in England and Wales unless otherwise stated. 
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11 Joint ventures’ summary financial statements (continued)

The movement for the year:

Parent Group

Equity Loans Total
£m £m £m £m

199.8 At 1 April 2000 321.1 249.7 570.8

45.1 Additions 55.5 82.2 137.7

(10.0) Repayment of loans (10.0) (10.0)

Share of profit attributable to

joint ventures (net of dividend) 12.6 12.6

Disposals (4.0) (4.0)

Revaluation 5.6 5.6

234.9 At 31 March 2001 390.8 321.9 712.7

The historical cost of joint ventures is £553.9m (2000 – £417.6m).

The amount of £234.9m includes £202.3m of loans to joint ventures by the parent.

Outline details of the joint ventures are set out on pages 28 to 34 of the Financial Review.

12 Other investments

Parent Group
£m £m

0.7 At 1 April 2000 150.4

0.3 Additions 15.8

(0.4) Disposals (98.1)

Revaluations 5.6

0.6 At 31 March 2001 73.7

8,322.5 Investment in subsidiaries (see below)

8,323.1 Total other investments 73.7

For the year ended 31 March 2001 dividends and interest from other investments amounted 

to £7.9m (2000 – £4.5m).

The historical cost of other Group investments is £67.5m (2000 – £145.3m).

Shares in subsidiaries are included at cost or directors’ valuation in 1977, 1995, 1997, 1999,

2000 and 2001, to take account of their underlying net asset value; their historical cost is

£3,708.0m (2000 – £3,706.0m).

Parent only

Shares in Loans to
subsidiaries subsidiaries Total

£m £m £m

At 1 April 2000 3,764.5 4,330.9 8,095.4

Additions (1.0) 220.7 219.7

Exchange fluctuations 3.0 3.0

Revaluation 4.4 4.4

At 31 March 2001 3,770.9 4,551.6 8,322.5
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12 Other investments (continued)

Principal operating subsidiaries:

EXECUTIVE The British Land Corporation Limited*
British Land Developments Limited
British Land Financing Limited*
British Land Properties Limited*

PROPERTY 135 Bishopsgate Financing Limited*
Adamant Investment Corporation Limited
Bayeast Property Company Limited
Broadgate Court Investments Limited
Broadgate Property Holdings Limited*
Broadgate (PHC 1) Limited
Broadgate (PHC 2) Limited
Broadgate (PHC 3) Limited
Broadgate (PHC 4) Limited
Broadgate (PHC 7) Limited
Broadgate (PHC 8) Limited
Broadgate (PHC 9) Limited
Broadgate (PHC 11) Limited
Broadgate (PHC 14) Limited
Broadgate (PHC 15a) Limited
Broadgate (PHC 15b) Limited
Broadgate (PHC 15c) Limited
City Wall (Holdings) Limited
Cleartest Limited
Derby Investment Holdings Limited*
Exchange House Holdings Limited
Jason Estates Limited
Meadowhall Centre Limited
One Hundred New Bridge Street Limited
Sabrex Limited
Sealhurst Properties Limited
The Equitable Debenture and Assets Corporation Limited
Union Property Corporation Limited
Union Property Holdings (Investments) Limited
Yatsen Limited

Netherlands British Land Investments Netherlands B.V.
Republic of Ireland Firmount Limited*

FINANCE, INVESTMENT

AND MANAGEMENT British Land Property Management Limited
Real Property and Finance Corporation Limited*
Broadgate (Funding) PLC

*Directly held by the Parent

These companies are wholly owned and except where otherwise 

stated are registered and operate in England and Wales.

13 Debtors

Parent Group
2001 2000 2001 2000

£m £m £m £m

Trade debtors 97.1 29.9

42.7 32.0 Amounts owed by group companies

11.4 6.7 Amounts owed by joint ventures 20.0 8.8

25.5 4.9 Prepayments and accrued income 25.4 3.1

79.6 43.6 142.5 41.8

14 Creditors due within one year

Parent Group
2001 2000 2001 2000

£m £m £m £m

Debentures and loans (note 16) 35.8 37.3

6.0 6.1 Overdrafts (note 16) 6.0 6.1

248.0 124.7 Bank loans (note 16) 248.0 124.7

0.2 13.1 Trade creditors 57.1 64.0

4,580.9 4,336.0 Amounts owed to group companies

0.8 Corporation tax 31.3 52.0

0.4 0.4 Other taxation and social security 12.7 4.2

148.0 17.4 Accruals and deferred income 268.8 238.8

40.9 38.9 Proposed final dividend 40.9 38.9

5,025.2 4,536.6 700.6 566.0

15 Creditors due after one year

Parent Group
2001 2000 2001 2000

£m £m £m £m

873.7 873.7 Debentures and loans (note 16) 2,417.1 2,453.1

640.1 796.3 Bank loans (note 16) 640.2 796.3

1,513.8 1,670.0 3,057.3 3,249.4
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Parent Group
2001 2000 Maturity analysis of net debt 2001 2000

£m £m Note £m £m

Repayable:

254.0 130.8 within one year and on demand 289.8 168.1

244.8 210.0 between: one and two years 283.1 245.8

365.8 484.7 two and five years 509.4 615.8

444.7 516.1 five and ten years 637.3 712.9

151.7 1.7 ten and fifteen years 381.0 237.2

150.0 fifteen and twenty years 197.6 352.9

180.5 180.5 twenty and twenty five years 382.2 370.4

197.1 197.1 twenty five and thirty years 555.9 489.6

246.5 thirty and thirty five years 428.1 272.7

246.5 thirty five and forty years 268.7

146.6 146.6 Irredeemable 146.6 146.6

2,231.7 2,264.0 Gross debt 3,811.0 3,880.7

(30.4) (54.1) Less cash and deposits (94.2) (118.4)

2,201.3 2,209.9 Net debt 3,716.8 3,762.3

Parent Group
2001 2000 Net debt comprises: 2001 2000

£m £m £m £m

Creditors due within one year 14

Debentures and loans 35.8 37.3

6.0 6.1 Overdrafts 6.0 6.1

248.0 124.7 Bank loans 248.0 124.7

254.0 130.8 289.8 168.1

Creditors due after one year 15

873.7 873.7 Debentures and loans 2,417.1 2,453.1

640.1 796.3 Bank loans 640.2 796.3

1,513.8 1,670.0 3,057.3 3,249.4

1,767.8 1,800.8 Debt before convertible bonds 3,347.1 3,417.5

463.9 463.2 Convertible bonds 463.9 463.2

2,231.7 2,264.0 Gross debt 3,811.0 3,880.7

(16.8) (40.2) Cash (29.2) (54.4)

(13.6) (13.9) Term deposits (65.0) (64.0)

(30.4) (54.1) Total cash and deposits (94.2) (118.4)

2,201.3 2,209.9 Net debt 3,716.8 3,762.3

16 Net debt

Group
Maturity of committed undrawn borrowing facilities 2001 2000

£m £m

Expiring:

Within one year 239.5 318.5

between: one and two years 219.5 228.0

two and three years 81.8 215.4

three and four years 252.5 47.7

four and five years 360.0 317.3

over five years 75.4 115.0

Total 1,228.7 1,241.9

Group
Interest rate profile – including effect of derivatives 2001 2000

£m £m

Fixed rate 3,095.1 3,207.0

Capped rate 200.0 150.0

Variable rate (net of cash) 421.7 405.3

Net debt 3,716.8 3,762.3

All the above debt is effectively Sterling except for £160.2m (2000 – £148.5m) of Euro debt 

of which £108.4m (2000 – £125.8m) is fixed and the balance floating. At 31 March 2001 the

weighted average interest rate of the Sterling fixed rate debt is 7.13% (reduced to 6.87% following

the buyback of the two unsecured bonds). The weighted average period for which the rate is

fixed is 22.7 years (decreased to 21.6 years following the buyback of the two unsecured bonds).

The Irredeemable Convertible Bond is treated as having a life of 100 years for this calculation.

The weighted average interest rate of the Euro fixed rate debt is 4.14% and the weighted

average period for which the rate is fixed is 2.7 years. The floating rate debt is set for periods 

of the Company’s choosing at the relevant LIBOR (or in the case of Euro debt EURIBOR) rate.

Total borrowings where any instalments are due after 31 March 2006 is £1,614.9m 

(2000 – £1,685.8m).

Details of the financing, treasury policy and financial risk management are set out on 

pages 17 and 18 of the Financial Review.
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Parent Group
2001 2000 2001 2000

£m £m £m £m

Secured on the assets of the Group

† 6.5055% Notes 2038 97.6 97.5

246.5 246.5 87/8% FMD Bonds 2035 246.5 246.5

197.1 197.1 93/8% FMD Stock 2028 197.1 197.1

12.6 12.6 101/2% FMD Stock 2019/24 12.6 12.6

20.4 20.4 113/8% FMD Stock 2019/24 20.4 20.4

† 5.66% 135 Bishopsgate Securitisation 2018 1.8 27.9

† 8.49% 135 Bishopsgate Securitisation 2018 7.1 106.8

476.6 476.6 583.1 708.8

Unsecured

† Class C2 6.4515% Notes 2032 73.2 73.1

† Class B 6.0875% Notes 2031 219.6 219.4

† Class A3 5.7125% Notes 2031 146.4 146.3

† Class A2 5.67% Notes 2029 295.7 299.5

† Class A1 Fixed Rate Notes 2024 317.2 316.9

147.6 147.6 ** 87/8% Bonds 2023 147.6 147.6

† 5.66% 135 Bishopsgate Securitisation 2018 25.2

† 8.49% 135 Bishopsgate Securitisation 2018 97.2

150.0 150.0 ** 121/2% Bonds 2016 150.0 150.0

† Class C1 6.7446% Notes 2014 170.8 170.7

† Class D Fixed/Floating Rate Notes 2014 127.4 155.1

1.7 1.7 101/4% Bonds 2012 1.7 1.7

97.8 97.8 * 7.35% Senior US Dollar Notes 2007 97.8 97.8

81/2% Loan Stock 2000/05 3.5

894.1 927.1 Bank loans and overdrafts 894.2 927.1

1,291.2 1,324.2 2,764.0 2,708.7

Convertible Bonds

6% Subordinated Irredeemable

146.6 146.6 Convertible Bonds 146.6 146.6

317.3 316.6 61/2% Convertible Bonds 2007 317.3 316.6

463.9 463.2 463.9 463.2

2,231.7 2,264.0 Gross debt 3,811.0 3,880.7

(30.4) (54.1) Cash and deposits (94.2) (118.4)

2,201.3 2,209.9 Net debt 3,716.8 3,762.3

†These borrowings are obligations of ringfenced, default remote, special purpose companies,

with no recourse to other companies or assets in the Group.

*These borrowings have been hedged into Sterling from the date of issue.

**These bonds were repurchased on 1 May 2001 (note 5).

Comparison of market values and book values at 31 March 2001
Market Book

Value Value Difference
£m £m £m

Fixed rate debt:

Securitised debt 1,658.0 1,579.2 78.8

Unsecured bonds (2016 and 2023) 407.1 401.5 5.6

Other fixed rate debt 698.4 576.1 122.3

Convertible debt 492.5 463.9 28.6

Bank debt (net) 800.0 800.0

Derivatives (23.6) (20.3) (3.3)

Total* 4,032.4 3,800.4 232.0

* This includes the accrual of £83.6m for the premium payable (net of the profit on the close out of
associated derivatives of £20.3m) on the repurchase of the unsecured bonds (£150m 12.5% Bonds
2016 and the £150m 8.875% Bonds 2023) which has been included in the accounts for the year to
31 March 2001. (See Note 5).

The Market Value and Difference are shown before any tax relief. The difference between book
value and market value on the convertibles arises principally from the British Land share price.

In accordance with Accounting Standards the book value of debt is par value net of amortised 
issue costs. Short term debtors and creditors have been excluded from the disclosures (other than
the currency disclosures). The valuations of the Broadgate Notes have been undertaken by Morgan
Stanley. The valuations of 135 Bishopsgate Securitisations 2018 have been undertaken by The Royal
Bank of Scotland. The valuations of other fixed rate debt and convertible debt have been undertaken 
by UBS Warburg. The bank debt has been valued assuming it could be renegotiated at contracted
margins. The derivatives have been valued by the independent treasury advisor Record Treasury
Management.

6% Subordinated Irredeemable Convertible Bonds
The £150 million 6% Subordinated Irredeemable Convertible Bonds carry a Bondholder conversion
right exercisable at any time into Ordinary Shares of the Company at 500p (2000 – 500p) per
share. The Company has the right to redeem, at its discretion, the Bonds at par if after 9 April
2001 the average ordinary share price attains 130% of the conversion price for a 30 day period 
and after 9 April 2008 without conditions. The Company has the right to redeem the remaining
Bonds where 75% of the Bonds have been converted or purchased or cancelled. If the Company
elects to redeem the Bonds, Bondholders have the right to convert into the underlying Ordinary
Shares. The Company has an option to exchange the Bonds for 6% Convertible Preference
Shares with the same conversion terms. The Company has a further option to exchange the
preference shares back to convertible bonds after these preference shares have been in issue 
for six months. On conversion of the entire issue into Ordinary Shares of the Company 30.0 million
Ordinary Shares would be issued.

61/2% Convertible Bonds 2007
The £323 million 61/2% Convertible Bonds 2007 carry a Bondholder right of conversion, exercisable
at any time, into Ordinary Shares of the Company at 672p (2000 – 672p) per share. The Company
has the right to redeem, at its discretion, all or part of the Bonds at par on or after 17 June 2002.
The Company has the right to redeem the remaining Bonds where 75% of the Bonds have been
converted or purchased or cancelled. If the Company elects to redeem the Bonds, Bondholders
have the right to elect for conversion into the underlying Ordinary Shares.

On conversion of the entire issue into Ordinary Shares of the Company 48.1 million Ordinary
Shares would be issued.
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16 Net debt (continued)
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17 Notes to the cash flow statement

Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities

2001 2000
£m £m

Operating profit 372.5 367.1

Dividends received (6.8) (1.1)

Depreciation 0.6 0.4

Decrease in trading properties 15.7 78.8

(Increase) decrease in debtors (23.6) (5.4)

Increase (decrease) in creditors 26.4 (7.6)

Net cash inflow from operating activities 384.8 432.2

Analysis of Group net debt

Non cash
2000 Cash flow movements 2001

£m £m £m £m

Cash at bank (54.4) 25.2 (29.2)

Overdraft 6.1 (0.1) 6.0

Net cash per cash flow statement (48.3) 25.1 (23.2)

Term debt 3,411.4 (78.0) 7.7 3,341.1

Convertible Bonds 463.2 0.7 463.9

Term deposits (64.0) (1.0) (65.0)

Group net debt 3,762.3 (53.9) 8.4 3,716.8

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in Group net debt

2001 2000
£m £m

Brought forward 3,762.3 2,708.2

Movement in net debt in the year;

Decrease in cash 25.1 32.1

Cash (outflow) inflow from movement in debt (78.0) 698.4

Cash outflow in term deposits (1.0) (25.7)

Changes resulting from cash flows (53.9) 704.8

Term debt acquired with Meadowhall Shopping Centre 448.7

Changes resulting from non cash flows 8.4 (99.4)

(45.5) 1,054.1

Carried forward 3,716.8 3,762.3

Equity dividends paid
The final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2000 was paid on 25 August 2000.
The interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2001 was paid on 20 February 2001.

18 Net Asset Value per share

2001 2000
Shares Net Assets Shares Net Assets

m £m m £m

Net Asset Value (undiluted)

Shareholders’ funds as shown on balance sheet 518.2 4,005.0 518.0 3,449.6

External valuation surplus on development and 

trading properties 149.4 143.9

Net assets attributable to ordinary shares 4,154.4 3,593.5

Net Asset Value per share (undiluted) 802p 694p

Fully diluted Net Asset Value

Net assets attributable to ordinary shares 518.2 4,154.4 518.0 3,593.5

Adjust to fully diluted on conversion of:

6% Irredeemable Convertible Bonds 30.0 146.6 30.0 146.6

61/2% Convertible Bonds 2007 48.1 317.3 48.1 316.6

Net assets attributable to fully diluted

ordinary shares 596.3 4,618.3 596.1 4,056.7

Fully diluted Net Asset Value per share 774p 681p

The NAV includes the surplus of the external property valuation over the book value of both
development and trading properties. Such properties are included in the balance sheet at the 
lower of cost and net realisable value.
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19 Share Capital

Ordinary Shares
of 25p each

Authorised 1 April 2000 and 31 March 2001 799,200,000

£m

Issued and fully paid 1 April 2000 129.5 518,003,924

Issues 0.1 224,508

Issued and fully paid 31 March 2001 129.6 518,228,432

Further details of share issues are included in the Directors’ Report.
£200,000 6% Cumulative redeemable convertible preference shares of £1 each are 
also authorised.
At 31 March 2001 – 1,947,248 ordinary shares were outstanding under the Share Option 
and Sharesave Schemes detailed below. 

1984 Share Option Scheme
Shares

Date of grant Price outstanding Exercise dates

10.4.92 1.44 20,452 10.4.97 – 9.4.02

8.1.93 1.86 20,452* 8.1.96 – 7.1.03

8.1.93 1.86 30,805* 8.1.96 – 7.1.03

8.1.93 1.58 33,332 8.1.98 – 7.1.03

6.7.94 3.80 68,231* 6.7.97 – 5.7.04

6.7.94 3.22 68,231 6.7.99 – 5.7.04

6.7.94 3.80 85,229 6.7.97 – 5.7.04

23.1.96 3.94 840,211 23.1.99 – 22.1.06

23.1.96 3.94 506,473 23.1.01 – 22.1.06

1,553,928

*These options are linked to a corresponding grant of options. Accordingly the exercise of one linked option over a number of shares

automatically causes its counterpart to lapse in respect of the same number of shares; therefore these options do not increase the

total number of shares under option. The total in the table reflects the number of shares under option. 

Sharesave Scheme
Shares

Date of grant Price outstanding Exercise dates

1.3.96 3.23 37,379 1.3.01 – 31.8.01

1.3.98 5.44 787 1.3.01 – 31.8.01

1.3.98 5.44 2,853 1.3.03 – 31.8.03

1.9.98 4.81 3,240 1.9.01 – 28.2.02

1.9.98 4.81 1,792 1.9.03 – 28.2.04

1.3.99 3.55 29,405 1.3.02 – 31.8.02

1.3.99 3.55 104,658 1.3.04 – 31.8.04

1.10.99 4.38 2,209 1.10.02 – 31.3.03

1.10.99 4.38 3,774 1.10.04 – 31.3.05

1.2.00 3.47 14,845 1.2.03 – 31.7.03

1.2.00 3.47 93,751 1.2.05 – 31.7.05

1.2.01 3.59 70,691 1.2.04 – 31.7.04

1.2.01 3.59 27,936 1.2.06 – 31.7.06

393,320 
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21 Capital commitments

2001 2000
£m £m

Contracted (including share of joint ventures – Note 11) 425.0 239.6

22 Contingent liabilities

It is estimated that, in the event of the realisation of all investment properties and fixed 
asset investments at book value, the liability for tax, after capital losses and available reliefs 
at 31 March 2001 would not be more than £590m (2000 – £468m) and at the total value of
investment, development and trading properties as shown in note 10, £630m (2000 – £509m).

Contingent liabilities of the Parent for guarantees to third parties amounted to £33.0m
(2000 – £33.0m).

23 Disclosure of interests and related parties

Mr John Ritblat has a 5.226% interest in Delancey Estates Plc which is the holding company
of Colliers Conrad Ritblat Erdman who are amongst the Group’s managing agents and as such
receive fees for their services.

Details of transactions with joint ventures including debt guarantees by the Company 
are given in notes 11 and 22. During the year the Group received a management fee of 
£1 million from BL Universal PLC.

24 Pensions

The British Land Group of Companies Pension Scheme (“the Scheme”) is the principal pension
scheme in the Group. It is a funded defined benefit scheme and the assets are held in trust 
and kept separate from those of the Company.

The pension cost relating to the Scheme has been determined in accordance with SSAP 24
by consulting actuaries Bacon & Woodrow using the results of calculations as at 31 March 2000
based on the attained age method. The most significant actuarial assumptions were that the
discount rate used to value the liabilities would be 5.8% per annum for the liabilities in the
period to retirement, 4.8% per annum for the liabilities in the period after retirement and that 
the general level of salaries and pensions in payment would increase at the rates of 5.05%
per annum and 2.7% per annum respectively. The financial assumptions are all lower than 
those used for the previous valuation reflecting the anticipation of lower rates of price inflation.

At the 31 March 2000 valuation the market value of the Scheme’s assets was £31.5m and 
on the assumptions used to calculate the pension cost, the actuarial value of the assets at that
date represented 121% of the value of members’ accrued benefits. Accrued benefits include all
benefits for pensioners and other former members as well as benefits, based on service completed
to date, for active members allowing for future salary rises.

The Company’s contributions in respect of the Scheme for the year ended 31 March 2001
were £1,128,707 (2000 – £2,095,523). The Company’s contributions over the year were based on
the results of the valuation of the Scheme at 31 March 2000, and allow for the amortisation 
of the surplus revealed at that valuation over a period within the average remaining service 
life of members. The Scheme pension cost recognised in these Group Accounts is equal to 
the Company’s contributions.

The Group has four other small pension schemes.
The total pension cost charged for the year was £1.7m (2000 – £2.4m).
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20 Reserves

Parent Group

Profit Profit
Share Other Revaluation and loss Share Other Revaluation and loss

premium reserves reserve account Total premium reserves reserve account Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

1,104.6 1.0 99.5 389.2 1,594.3 At 1 April 2000 1,104.6 (1.2) 1,619.0 597.7 3,320.1

0.7 0.7 Issues 0.7 0.7

(63.2) (63.2) Retained profit (loss) 15.7 15.7

Realisation of prior year revaluations (66.5) 66.5

4.3 4.3 Current year revaluation 539.6 539.6

(0.6) (0.6) Exchange movements on net investments (0.7) (0.7)

1,105.3 0.4 103.8 326.0 1,535.5 At 31 March 2001 1,105.3 (1.9) 2,092.1 679.9 3,875.4

The cumulative amount of goodwill written off against other reserves of the Group is £14.6m (2000 – £14.6m). 

Included in other reserves is £0.2m of capital redemption reserve.
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The Environment

Introduction

British Land’s role as one of the largest property

investors and developers in the UK means that we have

a special responsibility to the environment.

Environmental performance

An Environmental Committee chaired by a Director of the

Company, John Weston Smith, monitors environmental

responsibilities and controls. Members of the Committee

include the Company’s Head of Planning & Environment,

Adrian Penfold, and its Environmental Officer, Michael Kalman.

An Environmental Checklist has been distributed 

to all staff and to contractors and advisors, and goes as

well to new contractors and advisors on appointment. 

It details matters to be considered by the Company 

and its contractors and advisors in connection with the

acquisition, development and management of its properties.

The document includes appendices containing issues to

be addressed in environmental audits, and action lists 

for designers, contractors and managing agents.

The Company is improving environmental

performance in all areas of its business through its own

system of environmental management which is currently 

being implemented. The system covers setting and

monitoring of targets, analysis of performance, and

identification of improvements.

An Environmental Performance Review Panel reviews

reports on performance, and works with management

teams to put in place information systems and controls.

Education and training

The Company runs seminars for its employees, and

agents and consultants on environmental issues.

Currently environmental consultants, Arup Environmental,

are conducting workshop sessions on sustainability,

environmental management systems and life time

building management, attended by British Land HQ staff,

staff from our on-site management teams at Meadowhall,

Broadgate and managing agents. In addition, consultants

working on particular projects and other outside experts

speak on specific issues.

British Land is a member of the Property

Environment Group (PEG) which also arranges seminars

on environmental topics which staff attend.

Promotion of environmental issues

The Company works with outside agencies to improve

the property industry ’s environmental performance and

reputation, and sponsors work by the Building Research

Establishment to expand the existing environmental

assessment method for buildings (BREEAM) to cover 

the full retail sector.

Property acquisition

Before any property is acquired, the Company ensures

that environmental risks are controlled by using qualified

external professional consultants to assess sites. 

Pre acquisition environmental audits cover land

contamination, transport accessibility, presence of

sensitive sites on or nearby the site, ecology, archaeology,

overshadowing, hydrology, proximity of major aquifers 

or water courses, waste management, noise and local

community facilities. A satisfactory report is a

precondition to purchase.

Property development

When developing a building Project Managers direct

design consultants to aim for best environmental

practice represented in the Environmental Code of

Practice for Buildings and their Services and the Building

Research Establishment’s Environmental Assessment

Method. We require design consultants to adopt the best

practical targets for energy efficiency, use of material and

resources, re-cycling and pollution control. The Company

also actively promotes Travel Plans, i.e. the use of public

transport, walking and cycling, and specifies the use of

environmentally friendly materials in its developments.

Property management

The Company manages its properties in order to 

achieve a low environmental impact. We monitor energy

consumption and the use of hazardous materials and

materials with significant environmental impact. We

encourage recycling of paper, cardboard and other waste

material; hazardous materials are removed and disposed

of in accordance with the relevant regulations and

requirements of duty of care.

A proportion of our holdings is let on fully repairing

and insuring terms and is therefore outside of British

Land’s direct control. Where we have control of common

areas, in order to improve performance, trial building

audits are being undertaken as a precursor to embarking

on a portfolio wide audit of buildings.

Examples of the Company’s active approach to

environmental management include the preparation of an

estate wide Travel Plan at Regent’s Place and in March

2001, the achievement of accreditation under ISO 14001

of the Environmental Management System at Meadowhall.

Community involvement

The Company is an active participant in a number of

local community partnerships, most notably the West

Euston Partnership where it has provided premises for 

a One Stop Shop and is part funding a full time

economic development officer who is working with our

tenants at Regent’s Place and other local businesses 

to promote opportunities for local people. Other projects

that are supported include facilities for elderly people

and projects to improve the local environment

immediately surrounding a number of the Company’s

major property assets.
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Meadowhall environmental management

The Meadowhall Regional Shopping Centre 
began its work on environmental issues soon 
after opening, when few other businesses were

considering the impact of their operations on the
environment. The Centre’s Management Team established
its own “Green File” in 1992 stating its environmental
objectives and acknowledging that good environmental
practice can bring business benefits.

That foresight has brought Meadowhall to the point
today when the centre has reached a major environmental
milestone with accreditation under ISO 14001 approved in
March 2001, bringing proof from external auditors that the
business shows commitment to sound environmental
management principles.

Over the last nine years what began by providing
retailers with facilities to undertake simple separation and
recycling of waste, has developed into a comprehensive
approach to minimising the environmental impact of all
Meadowhall’s activities. Now the centre recycles 2,000
tons of cardboard every year and plans are being made
to increase this figure to 3,500 tons. In addition, there 
are bottle banks and facilities for plastics, paper, glass,
batteries and clothes recycling around Meadowhall. 
The Management Team is also committed to reducing
energy consumption, promoting the use of public
transport and playing its part in improving air quality
around Meadowhall, working with partners in the local
community and local councils.

Encouragement and education play a vital part in
achieving the objectives. Environmental awareness is dealt
with in training manuals, group meetings and training
sessions, with practical examples of how easy it is to join
in by turning off lights, shutting down computers and
closing doors to retain heat. Targets can only be met with
the enthusiastic co-operation of all employees and their
understanding that good environmental performance also
promotes good business efficiency.

The Meadowhall team is now working with retailers
and customers as well as the local community to further
improve environmental performances. The approach to
handling environmental issues is now more sophisticated;
we have introduced a task force representing all aspects
of the centre management who are responsible for
environmental good practice and for reviewing performances
and upgrading targets. This will ensure that good
environmental performance continues to be a priority 
at Meadowhall.

2
Heathrow Gateway – biodiversity

British Land is developing an 11 hectare (27.5 acre)
site in the London Borough of Hounslow near
Heathrow Airport to provide a new distribution

centre for the Royal Mail and two further buildings,
totalling some 40,890 sq m (437,000 sq ft).

Before design work began at the site, a comprehensive
survey of animal and plant life was undertaken by
external ecological consultants, who proposed a series 
of initiatives to protect the reptiles, insects, bats and plant
species found at the site.

Two species of bats were recorded in a tunnel at the
site and in the surrounding area. Following consultation
with English Nature, the tunnel is being sealed from
human activity by construction of a wall with specially
designed grills to allow access to the tunnel for bats 
but not humans.

A reptile survey revealed a population of Common
Lizards which are legally protected. The lizards were
moved to the nearby Hounslow Heath Local Nature
Reserve and subsequent investigation has shown that
they have settled in well and have been observed in
adjacent areas of the Heath within suitable lizard habitats.

A large part of the site has been retained as a
protected area of cinder grasslands, providing habitat for
butterflies and other animals. A number of plant species
were relocated from the proposed development site. 
We have also reinstated a previously culverted stream
into an open water course which provides new habitats
for plants and animals and protects the areas of
grassland to the west.

This project has been undertaken in liaison with 
the Environment Agency, English Nature and the London
Borough of Hounslow.

3
The Regent’s Place Travel Plan

British Land is currently preparing Travel Plans
promoting the use of public transport, cycling
and walking at a number of properties around

the UK as part of our town planning work associated with
major developments. 
A primary example of this is at Regent’s Place where we
have introduced a Travel Plan as part of the regeneration
and revitalisation of the area.

The Regent’s Place Travel Plan is widely seen as the 
most comprehensive Travel Plan in Central London, and
has the support of the 40 companies at Regent’s Place,
the London Borough of Camden, the Greater London
Authority, Transport for London, as well as local retailers
and community groups.

Key aspects of the project include:
– a new Travel Co-ordinator;
– a Transport Forum and Bicycle User Group;
– a free information booklet and CD Rom card;
– a comprehensive travel Internet site at

www.vicinitee.com featuring ‘live’ travel news,
transport maps and bus map movies;

– large parking facility for bicycles.
The Regent’s Place Travel Plan will feature in a

forthcoming best practice document on Travel Plan
Networks promoted by Central Government.

A Travel Plan for the Company Headquarters in
London is being prepared.
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Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of The British Land Company PLC 
will be held at the May Fair Inter-Continental Hotel, Stratton Street, London W1,
on Friday 13 July 2001, at 11.30 am for the following purposes:

1 To receive the Report of the Directors and audited Accounts for the year ended 
31 March 2001.

2 To declare a Final Dividend for the year ended 31 March 2001.

3 To re-elect Mr. N.S.J. Ritblat as a director.

4 To re-elect Mr. R.E. Bowden as a director.

5 To re-elect Mr. D.A. Higgs as a director.

6 To re-elect Lord Burns as a director.

7 To reappoint Arthur Andersen as Auditors.

8 To authorise the directors to fix the remuneration of the Auditors.

9 As special business, to amend by ordinary resolution the directors’ authority to allot 
unissued share capital or convertible securities of the Company, granted by shareholders 
on 14 July 2000 pursuant to Section 80 of the Companies Act 1985.

10 As special business, partially to waive by special resolution the pre-emption rights held 
by existing shareholders which attach to future issues for cash of equity securities of 
the Company by virtue of Section 89 of the Companies Act 1985.

11 As special business, to grant to the Company by special resolution authority to exercise its
power to purchase, for cancellation, its own shares pursuant to the Articles of Association 
of the Company.

12 As special business, to amend by special resolution the Company’s Articles of Association.

13 As special business, to adopt by ordinary resolution a new All Employee Share 
Ownership Plan.

By Order of the Board,

Anthony Braine

Secretary

30 May 2001
10 Cornwall Terrace
Regent’s Park
London NW1 4QP

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint one or more 
proxies to attend and upon a poll vote instead of him/her. A proxy need not be a member 
of the Company.
A form of proxy is enclosed and to be valid must be lodged with the registrars not less 
than forty-eight hours before the meeting.

Notes

1 The full text of each resolution to be considered under items 9 to 13 above, inclusive,
and an explanation thereof are contained in the letter to shareholders from the Chairman
which accompanies this Notice and is headed “Annual General Meeting 2001.”

2 The following documents will be available for inspection at 10 Cornwall Terrace,
Regent’s Park, London NW1, during usual business hours on any weekday (Saturdays 
and public holidays excluded) from the date of this notice until 13 July 2001: 

a a statement of transactions of each director and of his family interests in the share 
and loan capital of the Company, and its subsidiaries, during the period 1 April 2000
to 30 May 2001; 

b copies of all contracts of service between directors and the Company;

c a copy of the proposed new Articles of Association of the Company; and

d a copy of the draft Trust Deed and Rules of the proposed new All Employee Share
Ownership Plan.

They will also be available for inspection at the May Fair Inter-Continental Hotel, W1 
for the period of fifteen minutes prior to the Annual General Meeting and during 
that meeting.



Analysis of Shareholders 2001

Number of Number of
Number of shares shareholders % shares %

1 – 1,000 7,036 53.85 3,433,143 0.66

1,001 – 5,000 4,266 32.65 9,336,073 1.80

5,001 – 20,000 873 6.68 8,599,238 1.66

20,001 – 50,000 272 2.08 8,747,627 1.69

Over 50,000 619 4.74 488,112,351 94.19

13,066 100.00 518,228,432 100.00

Individuals 7,347 56.23 11,782,708 2.27

Banks or nominees 5,237 40.08 485,704,185 93.72

Insurance companies 8 0.06 12,997,995 2.51

Other companies 312 2.39 5,064,748 0.98

Pension trusts 6 0.05 45,301 0.01

Local/National authorities and

other institutions 156 1.19 2,633,495 0.51

13,066 100.00 518,228,432 100.00

Individual Savings Accounts (ISAs) and Share Dealing Service

The Company offers Individual Savings Accounts (ISAs). The Plan Manager is Barclays

Stockbrokers. Barclays Stockbrokers also offer private individuals a low cost telephone and

postal service for dealing in shares of the Company. Commission rates start at £10.

Details can be obtained by writing to or telephoning: 

Barclays Stockbrokers Limited, Client Service, Tay House, 300 Bath Street, Glasgow G2 4LH.

For details of the ISA call: 0845 601 3000

For details of the Share Dealing Service call: 0845 702 3021

Lines are open between 8.00am and 6.00pm Monday to Friday, except bank holidays,

and 9.00am to 1.00pm on Saturday. All calls are charged at the local rate and can only be 

accessed from within the UK. For your security all calls may be recorded and randomly monitored.

Barclays Stockbrokers Limited is a member of the London Stock Exchange and regulated 

by the SFA.

Head Office and Registered Office

10 Cornwall Terrace, Regent’s Park, London NW1 4QP

Telephone 020 7486 4466 Fax 020 7935 5552

www.britishland.co.uk

info@britishland.co.uk

Financial Calendar

Dividends on Ordinary Shares

Interim Ordinary declared December

Final Ordinary declared May

Interest payments

The British Land Company PLC:

6% Subordinated Irredeemable Convertible Bonds 26 March, 26 September

61⁄2% Convertible Bonds 2007 17 May, 17 November

8 7⁄8% First Mortgage Debenture Bonds 2035 24 March, 24 September

9 3⁄8% First Mortgage Debenture Stock 2028 31 March, 30 September

101⁄2% First Mortgage Debenture Stock 2019/24 31 March, 30 September

101⁄4% Bonds 2012 26 March

113⁄8% First Mortgage Debenture Stock 2019/24 31 March, 30 September

Broadgate (Funding) PLC:

Class A1 Fixed Rate Unsecured Notes 2024

Class D Fixed/Floating Rate Unsecured Notes 2014

Class A2 5.67% Unsecured Notes 2029

Class A3 5.7125% Unsecured Notes 2031 5 January, 5 April,

Class B 6.0875% Unsecured Notes 2031 5 July, 5 October

Class C2 6.4515% Unsecured Notes 2032

6.5055% Secured Notes 2038

Class C1 6.7446% Unsecured Notes 2014

Taxation of Capital Gains

The market value at 31 March 1982 of an Ordinary 25p Share of the Company, for 

the purpose of capital gains tax indexation allowance, was 85.5p prior to adjustment 

for capitalisation or rights issues.

Registrars and Transfer Office

Lloyds TSB Registrars, The Causeway, Worthing, West Sussex BN99 6DA

Telephone 0870 600 3984
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Ten Year Record ended 31 March
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Net Profit before Earnings
Gross Net Net assets rental tax per share Dividend Profit Earnings
assets assets per share income (pre-exceptional) (pre-exceptional) per share before tax per share

£m £m pence £m £m pence pence £m pence
a a a,b b b

2001 8,376.2 4,154.4 802 370.5 169.1 28.7 11.50 85.5 14.5

2000 7,872.1 3,593.5 694 347.5 156.4 24.8 10.90 156.4 24.8

1999 6,431.5 3,261.7 630 296.5 123.3 20.6 10.30 55.3 10.1

1998 5,701.6 3,052.0 592 266.4 127.2 21.2 9.80 127.2 21.2

1997 4,889.2 2,427.5 487 277.0 91.2 15.7 9.00 91.2 15.7

1996 4,513.0 1,948.2 426 220.9 62.1 11.2 8.55 62.1 11.2

1995 3,325.4 1,663.8 416 173.9 49.1 8.4 8.12 49.1 8.4

1994 2,660.3 1,392.4 413 139.4 53.9 11.4 7.53 53.9 11.4

1993 1,934.3 833.5 283 128.4 27.2 8.4 7.00 27.2 8.4

1992 2,017.5 763.8 300 111.8 8.0 0.4 6.35 8.0 0.4

a Including surplus over book value of trading and development properties.

b Adjusted for the placing of 42.8m shares in March 1997, the placing and open offer of 61.6m shares in November 1995, the open offer of 61.3m shares in 

March 1995 and the rights issue of 55.1m shares in June 1993.
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British Land is strongly committed to enhancing the

environment by investing in the future through education,

the arts and sport. Particular emphasis is given on

providing support and facilities for young people and

children and improvement of their quality of life and

prospects. Notable initiatives include:

– British Land sponsored the outstandingly successful

revival production of Prokofiev’s Romeo and Juliet at the

Royal Opera House.

– This year nearly 50,000 schoolchildren from 1,200

schools are taking part in The British Land UK Chess

Challenge, which is the largest chess tournament in the

world. The tournament is designed for all standards of

play and all ages from 18 down to 6 years old. Schools

build their reputations while children benefit from

constructive enjoyment and developing qualities of

concentration, forward planning, resilience and flexibility.

– Partners in Leadership is one of Business in the

Community’s most successful projects with over 600

business partners matched to head teachers throughout

the country. The business partner provides a sounding

board to the head teacher charged with the complex

task of running a school today. British Land sponsors 

the Partners in Leadership Newsletter and encourages

and supports its own employees’ involvement as

business partners.

– The Prince’s Trust helps young people to succeed,

focusing on 14-30 year olds who lack the opportunity 

or means to make the most of their lives. British Land 

is supporting six young people in starting their own

businesses and reaching their potential.

– The West Euston Partnership involves Camden

Council, the Health Authority, the police, community

associations, tenants, the church, the Crown Estate,

British Land and the Prudential with a brief to unite the

diverse Camden community. British Land contributes 

to the Partnership’s work and supports community

regeneration in the area.

The Company’s commitment to the future also includes

being a funding partner of the London Business School

and publication of a series of Educational Broadsheets.

British Land supports the Investment Property Forum’s

Educational Trust, Barnardo’s, the British Red Cross,

Mencap and the NSPCC Corporate brochure.

British Land has contributed to the Tate Gallery

and sponsored the new permanent, fully illustrated

Catalogue of the National Gallery’s collection of works 

by British Artists, by Judy Egerton. The British Museum,

The Victoria and Albert Museum, The Wallace Collection,

the London Philharmonic Orchestra, the English National

Opera, The National Theatre, The Wigmore Hall, The Royal

Shakespeare Company, The Royal Ballet School and 

The Regent’s Park Open Air Theatre have also received

support. The Company is a founding exhibition patron 

of the Royal Academy of Arts.

British Land has been sole sponsor of The British

Land National Ski Championships for 23 consecutive years

and also sponsors The British Land Alpine Ski Team. The

Company is presenting sponsor of the 2001 Super Series

Squash Finals at Broadgate. The British Land British Open

and Amateur Championships for Real Tennis are in 

their eighth year.

The photographs of this years sponsorship of the

Museum of London were taken by Matthew Stuart as

part of the ongoing support for emerging photographers.
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The Museum of London is the world’s largest and most

comprehensive urban history museum with over a million objects and Europe’s

largest archaeological unit and archive. Its costume and working history

collections are unmatched in range or scale by any other in the UK.

The Museum exists to inspire a passion for London, and as the single 

most important source of knowledge on the nation’s capital, it is uniquely both 

a national and local museum. The permanent galleries tell the story of London

and Londoners from prehistoric times to today, discovering and chronicling 

every aspect of the city’s life.

Around 90,000 young people visit the Museum in groups each year,

it provides a valuable educational resource for schools, colleges and societies.

There is also a continuous programme of public events, including gallery and

exhibition tours, drama sessions, workshops, lectures and the chance to handle

real objects with Museum specialists.

The Museum is embarking on an ambitious programme of work to

redevelop its main building at London Wall. This will include the creation of a 

new entrance from street level, a new entrance and foyer, improved circulation

around the building via new lifts and staircases, a new special exhibition gallery 

and the renewal of the existing permanent galleries. Architects Wilkinson Eyre

have produced an elegant and considered way of upgrading the existing 

building as well as increasing gallery space by 70%. The redevelopment work 

is contemporary in its use of technology but at the same time seeks to 

recapture the clarity of the original Powell & Moya design. 

The first of the new permanent galleries will be World City 1789-1914,

charting the emergence of London as the world’s first great metropolis of the

industrial age. Opening in December 2001, it marks the start of the Museum’s 

25th birthday celebrations. Summer 2002 sees the opening of London before

London, a gallery covering the period from c.450,000BC to the founding of

Londinium in around AD48.

For more information, please contact Magdalen Roberts on 020 7814 5508;

mroberts@museumoflondon.org.uk.

It is with particular pleasure that British Land was able to donate the Roman 

coins and other artefacts discovered during the archaelogical dig undertaken 

at the Company’s development site, Plantation Place. A booklet on Roman 

Coins has been sent to shareholders together with the Annual Report 

describing some of the emperors depicted on the coins found.

Design by: CDT Design

Photography by: Matthew Stuart

Copywriting by: Tim Shackleton

Typesetting by: New Leaf

Printed by: Beacon Press

The paper used in this Annual Report is made from
pulp where for every tree felled, 3-4 are planted.
The mill recycles the water and ‘millbroke’ or offcuts
and rejects used in the papermaking process.

RECYCLABLE

Matthew Stuart
Unwittingly my father helped my love of photography
when he gave me books by Robert Frank and Henri
Cartier-Bresson for Christmas. That started an obsession.

Four years ago when I started taking pictures I wanted
to be a photojournalist but quickly realised that I wasn't
cut out for those serious situations. I love humorous
pictures, ones that make a demand on the viewer,
ones that engage and reward.

I take my Leica everywhere because you never 
know when a lucky moment might happen. I really 
kick myself if I miss it. Luck is important but I think 
it helps to know what you're looking for. I always have 
to be on the look out, this is what separates a street
photographer from the rest. You never switch off.

My ambition is to carry on capturing the common-
place pictures that most people just don’t have time 
to notice anymore. I don't think what I do is easy,
but when I get a good one it's the best feeling 
in the world.




